
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Mayor Tom J. Rankin 
Vice-Mayor Tara Walter  
Councilmember Vallarie Woolridge 
Councilmember Bill Hawkins 
Councilmember Becki Guilin 
Councilmember John Anderson 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
 
 
Monday, July 18, 2016 
 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM
 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Monday, 
July 18, 2016, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at  775 N. Main 
Street, Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Rankin __, Walter__, Woolridge__, Hawkins__,  

Guilin__, Anderson__, Wall____. 
 
3. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may 
respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or 
may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall 
not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters 
are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

6. ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

a. Public hearing to receive citizen comments on the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 
District No. 1 Secondary Property Tax Levy for Fiscal Year 2016 - 2017. 
 

b. Ordinance No. MRCFD1 113-16: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN ORDINANCE 
OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF 
CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE 
AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE, 

mariah
Highlight



2017, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY, and roll call vote to consider a motion to 
levy the increased property tax.  (First Reading July 5, 2016) (Gabe Garcia) 

 
7. ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
8. ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

a. Public hearing to receive citizen comments on the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 
District No. 2. Secondary Property Tax Levy for Fiscal Year 2016 - 2017. 
 

b. Ordinance No. MRCFD2 213-16: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN ORDINANCE 
OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM 
UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT 
ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE, 2017, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY, and roll call vote to consider a motion to levy the 
increased property tax.  (First Reading July 5, 2016) (Gabe Garcia) 

 
9. ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 

 
10. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION  
 

a. Public hearing to receive citizen comments on the property tax levy  of the Town of 
Florence Ordinance No. 651-16; and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING 
THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF 
VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED 
FROM FUNDS FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE, 2017, AND DECLARING AND EMERGENCY, and 
roll call vote to consider a motion to levy the increased property tax.  (First Reading July 
5, 2016) (Gabe Garcia) 
 

b. Presentation and discussion of Historic Preservation Conference and Historic 
Preservation and Adaptive Reuse field trip to Tucson, Arizona.  (Mark Eckhoff) 
 

c. Presentation and update of the Main Street Streetscape Project.  (Jess Knudson) 
 

11. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  
 
a. Resolution No. 1592-16: Adoption of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 

PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ACCEPTING TRIBAL GAMING FUNDS GRANTED BY 
THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY. (Jennifer Evans) 

 
b. Resolution No. 1593-16: Adoption of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 

PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO A GRANT 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF TUCSON POLICE DEPARTMENT REGARDING 
THE ARIZONA HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA. (Jennifer Evans) 

 
c. Approval of the June 6 and June 20, 2016 Council minutes. 

 
d. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

 
i. December 2, 2015, January 6, January 28, February 24, March 23, and April 27, 

2016 150 Year Anniversary Celebration Ad Hoc Committee minutes.  
ii. May 25, 2016 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes.  
iii. April 20, 2016 Library Advisory Board minutes.  
iv. May 5, 2016 Planning and Zoning Commission minutes. 

  
12.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Discussion on possible need for amendment of the Town of Florence Development Code 

with special emphasis on the Design Review Code. (Mayor Tom Rankin and 
Councilmember John Anderson) 

 
13. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of entering into a contract with Koko Entertainment, 

LLC, for Teen Leadership and Programming, in an amount not to exceed $48,000, and 
authorize the Town Manager to transfer ownership of a 1995 Ford Club Wagon Van 
scheduled for disposal to Mr. Hunter.  (Bryan Hughes) 

 
b. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a Town directional sign, proposed to be located at 

the northwest corner of State Highway 79 and the Main Street extension, with external 
illumination, in an amount not to exceed $16,000.  (Mark Eckhoff) 

 
14. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

15. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
16. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 

 
17. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 

An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for legal matters pursuant to 
A.R.S. Section 38-431.03 (A)(1), (A)(3), (A)(4), and (A)(7)  for the purpose of discussion and 
consultation with the Town’s attorneys for legal advice on the following items: 
 
a. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to pending litigation in Maricopa 

County Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV 2015-000325. 
 

b. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality proceedings. 

 
c. Town’s attorneys for legal advice on a pending and threated claim filed by Johnson 

Utilities.  
 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



d. Town’s attorney regarding potential contract dispute for solid waste services. 
 

e. Evaluation of the Town Manager’s three-year performance plan. 
 
18. ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
19. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of 
obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON JULY 14, 2016, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  
 



 MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

 
Chairman Tom J. Rankin 
Boardmember Tara Walter  
Boardmember Vallarie Woolridge 
Boardmember Bill Hawkins 
Boardmember Becki Guilin 
Boardmember John Anderson 
Boardmember Karen Wall 
 
 
Monday, July 18, 2016 
 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM
 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Members of the Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District and to the general public that a Special Meeting of the Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No 1 Board will be held on Monday, July 18, 2016, at 6:00 
p.m., in the Union Center at Sun City Anthem at Merrill Ranch, located at 3925 N. Sun City 
Boulevard, Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
 
1. ROLL CALL: Rankin _, Walter_, Woolridge_, Hawkins_, Guilin_, Anderson_ , Wall__.  
 
2. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Public hearing to receive citizen comments on the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 
District No. 1 Secondary Property Tax Levy for Fiscal Year 2016 - 2017. 

 
b. Ordinance No. MRCFD1 113-16: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN ORDINANCE 

OF THE MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF 
CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE 
AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE, 
2017, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY, and roll call vote to consider a motion to 
levy the increased property tax.  (First Reading July 5, 2016) (Gabe Garcia) 

 
3. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of 
obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON JULY 14, 2016, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 

mariah
Highlight



REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  
 
 



 MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

 
Chairman Tom J. Rankin 
Boardmember Tara Walter  
Boardmember Vallarie Woolridge 
Boardmember Bill Hawkins 
Boardmember Becki Guilin 
Boardmember John Anderson 
Boardmember Karen Wall 
 
 
Monday, July 18, 2016 
 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM
 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Members of the Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District and to the general public that a Special Meeting of the Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No 2 Board will be held on Monday, July 18, 2016, at 6:00 
p.m., in the Union Center at Sun City Anthem at Merrill Ranch, located at 3925 N. Sun City 
Boulevard, Florence, Arizona.  The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
 
1. ROLL CALL: Rankin _, Walter_, Woolridge_, Hawkins_, Guilin_, Anderson_ , Wall__.  
 
2. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Public hearing to receive citizen comments on the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities 
District No. 2. Secondary Property Tax Levy for Fiscal Year 2016 - 2017. 
 

b. Ordinance No. MRCFD2 213-16: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN ORDINANCE 
OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM 
UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT 
ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE, 2017, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY, and roll call vote to consider a motion to levy the 
increased property tax.  (First Reading July 5, 2016) (Gabe Garcia) 

 
3. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of 
obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON JULY 14, 2016, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 

mariah
Highlight



REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS 
SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  
 
 



 

Community Facilities 
District No. 1 

District ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
6b. 

MEETING DATE:  July 18, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Gabriel Garcia, District Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. MRCFD1 113-16                              
                   Levy Secondary Property Tax  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Ordinance No. MRCFD1 113-16  Meeting Date:  July 18, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Open public hearing to receive citizen comments on the property tax levy of the Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, Arizona,  
 
Following public hearing, motion to adopt Ordinance No. MRCFD1 113-16:  AN 
ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 
RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th 
DAY OF JUNE 2017, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The District Board has authorized a secondary property tax levy for the payment of debt 
service, infrastructure and operations and maintenance of Community Facilities District 
No. 1.  The current property tax rate is $3.55 per $100 of Net Assessed Valuation 
(NAV). 
 
The estimates for Budget Year 2016-2017 have been determined.  This year’s budget 
includes anticipated revenues from assessments and secondary tax.  Expenditures are 
included along with anticipated debt service and administrative expenses. 
 
The immediate operation of the ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public 
peace, health, and safety of the District, and an emergency is hereby declared to exist; 
and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from its passage and publication as 
required by the laws of the State of Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum 
provisions of the constitution and laws of the State of Arizona. 
 
The first reading of Ordinance No. MRCFD1 113-16 was held on July 5, 2016. 



Subject: Ordinance No. MRCFD1 113-16  Meeting Date:  July 18, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Total collections in revenues and prior year fund balance and bond proceeds are 
anticipated to fund all expenditures.  A secondary tax of $3.25 per $100/NAV, estimated 
at $609,860, for debt service and an operations and maintenance levy of $0.30 per 
$100/NAV, estimated at $56,295, will be levied on this District, for a total of $3.55 per 
$100/NAV, or $666,155. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Open public hearing to receive citizen comments on the property tax levy of the Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, Arizona,  
 
Following public hearing, motion to adopt Ordinance No. MRCFD1 113-16, adopting a 
secondary property tax levy in the amount of $3.55 per $100/NAV for Fiscal Year 2016-
2017. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD1 113-16 



MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. MRCFD1 113-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 1, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 SUBJECT TO TAXATION 
OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT 
TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM 
FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2017, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 
WHEREAS, by the provision of State Law, the ordinance levying a secondary 

property tax rate for the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 is required to be adopted no later than 
the third Monday in August; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Pinal is now the assessing and collecting authority for 

the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1, the District Clerk is hereby 
directed to transmit a certified copy of the ordinance to the Assessor and Board of 
Supervisors of Pinal County, Arizona; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch 

Community Facilities District No. 1, as follows: 
 

Section 1:  There is hereby levied on each $100 of the assessed value of all property, 
both real and personal, within the corporate limits of the Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 1, except such property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a 
secondary property tax rate of $3.25 on each $100 of Net Assessed Valuation (NAV), 
for the purpose of providing debt service and enhanced municipal services, and $0.30 
on each $100/NAV for operations and maintenance of the District, for a combined rate 
of $3.55 on each $100/NAV for the Fiscal Year ending on the 30th day of June, 2017, 
but if the said sum exceeds the maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors 
of Pinal County is hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which is 
allowed by law. 

 
Section 2:  No failure by the officials of Pinal County, Arizona, to properly return the 
delinquent list and no irregularity in the assessment or commission in the same, or 
irregularity of any kind in any proceeding will invalidate such proceeding or invalidate 
any title conveyed by tax deed; nor will any failure or neglect of any officer or officers to 
perform any of the duties assigned to him or to them on the day within the time specified 
work an invalidation of any proceedings or of any such deed or sale or affect the validity 
of the assessment of a levy of taxes or of the judgment of sale by which the collection of 
the same may be enforced or in any manner affect the lien of the Town upon such 
property for the delinquent unpaid taxes thereon, and no overcharge as to part of the 



taxes or of costs will invalidate any of the proceeding upon the lien therefore, or a sale 
of the property under such foreclosure; and all acts of officers de facto will be valid as if 
performed by officer de jure. 

 
Section 3:  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

 
Section 4:  The immediate operation of the ordinance is necessary for the preservation 
of the public peace, health, and safety of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District 
No. 1, and an emergency is hereby declared to exist; and this ordinance shall be in full 
force and effect from its passage and approval by the District Board and publication as 
required by the laws of the State of Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum 
provisions of the constitution and laws of the State of Arizona. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch Community 

Facilities District No. 1, Pinal County, Arizona, on the 18th day of July 2016. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, District Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ ___________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, District Clerk Clifford L. Mattice, District Attorney 
 



 

Community Facilities 
District No. 2 

District ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
8b. 

MEETING DATE:  July 18, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Gabriel Garcia, District Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT:   Ordinance No. MRCFD2 213-16  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Ordinance No. MRCFD2 213-16  Date: July 18, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 
 

                     Levy Secondary Property Tax 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Open public hearing to receive citizen comments on the property tax levy of the Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilties District No. 2, Arizona,  
 
Following public hearing, motion to adopt Ordinance No. MRCFD2 213-16:  AN 
ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO 
RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th 
DAY OF JUNE 2017, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The District Board has authorized a secondary property tax levy for the payment of debt 
service, infrastructure and operations and maintenance of Community Facilities District 
No. 2.  The current property tax rate is $3.55 per $100 of Net Assessed Valuation 
(NAV). 
 
The estimates for Budget Year 2016-2017 have been determined.  This year’s budget 
includes anticipated revenues from assessments and secondary tax.  Expenditures are 
included along with anticipated debt service and administrative expenses. 
 
The immediate operation of the ordinance is necessary for the preservation of the public 
peace, health, and safety of the District, and an emergency is hereby declared to exist; 
and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from its passage and publication as 
required by the laws of the State of Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum 
provisions of the constitution and laws of the State of Arizona. 
 
The first reading of Ordinance No. MRCFD2 213-16 was held on July 5, 2016. 



Subject: Ordinance No. MRCFD2 213-16  Date: July 18, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Total collections in revenues and prior year fund balance and bond proceeds are 
anticipated to fund all expenditures.  A secondary tax of $3.25 per $100/NAV, estimated 
at $544,355, for debt service and an operations and maintenance levy of $0.30 per 
$100/NAV, estimated at $50,248, will be levied on this District for a total of $3.55 per 
$100/NAV, or $594,603. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Open public hearing to receive public comments on the property tax levy of the Merrill 
Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2, Arizona,  
 
Following public hearing, motion to adopt Ordinance No. MRCFD2 213-16, adopting a 
secondary property tax levy in the amount of $3.55 per $100/NAV for Fiscal Year 2016-
2017. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. MRCFD2 213-16 



MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. MRCFD2 213-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT NO. 2, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF 
CERTAIN SUM UPON $100 OF VALUATION SUFFICIENT TO RAISE 
THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM FUNDS FOR 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2017, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 
WHEREAS, by the provision of State Law, the ordinance levying a secondary 

property tax rate for the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 is required to be adopted no later than 
the third Monday in August; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Pinal is now the assessing and collecting authority for 

the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2, the District Clerk is hereby 
directed to transmit a certified copy of the ordinance to the Assessor and Board of 
Supervisors of Pinal County, Arizona; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch 

Community Facilities District No. 2, as follows: 
 

Section 1:  There is hereby levied on each $100 of the assessed value of all property, 
both real and personal, within the corporate limits of the Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 2, except such property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a 
secondary property tax rate of $3.25 on each $100/NAV for the purpose of providing 
debt service and enhanced municipal services, and $0.30 on each $100/NAV for 
operations and maintenance of the District, for a combined rate of $3.55 on each 
$100/NAV for the Fiscal Year ending on the 30th day of June, 2017, but if the said sum 
exceeds the maximum levy allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County is 
hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to the maximum which is allowed by law. 

 
Section 2:  No failure by the officials of Pinal County, Arizona, to properly return the 
delinquent list and no irregularity in the assessment or commission in the same, or 
irregularity of any kind in any proceeding will invalidate such proceeding or invalidate 
any title conveyed by tax deed; nor will any failure or neglect of any officer or officers to 
perform any of the duties assigned to him or to them on the day within the time specified 
work an invalidation of any proceedings or of any such deed or sale or affect the validity 
of the assessment of a levy of taxes or of the judgment of sale by which the collection of 
the same may be enforced or in any manner affect the lien of the Town upon such 
property for the delinquent unpaid taxes thereon, and no overcharge as to part of the 
taxes or of costs will invalidate any of the proceeding upon the lien therefore, or a sale 



of the property under such foreclosure; and all acts of officers de facto will be valid as if 
performed by officer de jure. 

 
Section 3:  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

 
Section 4:  The immediate operation of the ordinance is necessary for the preservation 
of the public peace, health, and safety of the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District 
No. 2, and an emergency is hereby declared to exist; and this Ordinance shall be in full 
force and effect from its passage and approval by the District Board and publication as 
required by the laws of the State of Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum 
provisions of the constitution and laws of the State of Arizona. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the District Board of Merrill Ranch Community 

Facilities District No. 2, Pinal County, Arizona, the 18th day of July 2016. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
     Tom J. Rankin, District Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ ___________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, District Clerk Clifford L. Mattice, District Attorney 
 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10a. 

MEETING DATE:  July 18, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance/Administration   
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Gabriel Garcia, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Ordinance No. 651-16 
                      Property Tax Levy for Fiscal Year 2016-17 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Ordinance No. 651-16 Property Tax Levy                                   Meeting Date:  July 18, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Open public hearing to receive citizen comments on the property tax levy of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona,  
 
Following the public hearing, motion to adopt Ordinance No. 651-16: AN ORDINANCE 
OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, LEVYING THE 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
SUBJECT TO TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION 
SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED FROM 
FUNDS FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2017, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
  
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence levies a primary property tax annually.  The rate that was levied 
last year was $1.1182 per $100 of Net Assessed Valuation (NAV).  The current property 
tax rate is $1.1182 per $100/NAV. The recommended budget does not propose an 
increase in the property tax rate, leaving it at $1.1182 per $100/NAV. 

As calculated by the Arizona Department of Revenue, the Truth-in-Taxation (TNT) rate 
is $1.1450 per $100/NAV, which is the maximum rate the Town can levy without having 
to hold a Truth-in-Taxation (TNT) hearing.  Therefore, the Town is not required to hold a 
TNT hearing. 

At the current rate of $1.1182, the proposed property tax levy for the 2016-2017 Fiscal 
Year is $898,846.  

The Town levies an ad valorem, or secondary property tax, for the Merrill Ranch 
Streetlight Improvement Districts No. 1, No. 2, and No. 3.  This year, due to adequate 
fund balance, there will be no levy.   
 



Subject:  Ordinance No. 651-16 Property Tax Levy                                   Meeting Date:  July 18, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

The first reading of Ordinance No. 651-16 was held on July 5, 2016.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Primary taxes are calculated using Limited Property Value (LPV), and are used to pay 
for basic maintenance, and operation of the Town.   

A $100,000 LPV using our proposed rate of $1.1182 per $100/NAV would be $111.82. 

The levy would add to the General Fund revenue base and is essential to funding all of 
the departments within the General Fund that are necessary to maintain Town services. 

District Levies are as follows: 
Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 1 - $0 or $0 per $100/FCV  
Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 2 - $0 or $0 per $100/FCV 
Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 3 - $0 or $0 per $100/FCV 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Hold a public hearing to receive citizen comments on the property tax levy of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona.   
 
Following the public hearing, motion to adopt Ordinance No. 651-16. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 651-16 
Truth-in-Taxation Levy Limit Worksheet (Arizona Dept. of Revenue) 
Truth-in-Taxation Analysis 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 651-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, LEVYING THE ASSESSED VALUATION OF THE 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION OF CERTAIN SUM UPON EACH $100 OF VALUATION 
SUFFICIENT TO RAISE THE AMOUNT ESTIMATED TO BE RECEIVED 
FROM FUNDS FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL EXPENSES FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING THE 30th DAY OF JUNE 2016, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. §42-17151, the ordinance levying a primary 

property tax rate for the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 is required to be adopted no later than 
the third Monday in August; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County of Pinal, is now the assessing and collecting authority for 

the Town of Florence.  The Town Clerk is hereby directed to transmit a certified copy of 
the ordinance to the Assessor and Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, Arizona. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, as follows: 

 
 Section 1:  There is hereby levied on each $100 of the assessed value of all 

property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits of the Town of 
Florence, except such property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a 
primary property tax rate sufficient to raise the sum of $898,846 for the purpose 
of providing a General Fund of the Town of Florence, for the Fiscal Year ending 
on the 30th day of June 2017, but if the said sum exceeds the maximum levy 
allowed by law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, is hereby authorized to 
reduce the said sum to the maximum which is allowed by law. 
 
Section 2:  There is hereby levied on each $100 of the assessed value of all 
property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits of the Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No.1, Town of Florence, except such 
property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary property tax rate of 
$0 per $100 of Net Assessed Valuation (NAV) for the purpose of providing 
operations and maintenance for the Anthem at Merrill Ranch Street Light 
Improvement District No. 1 for the Fiscal Year ending on the 30th day of June, 
2017, but if the said sum exceeds the maximum levy allowed by law, the Board 
of Supervisors of Pinal County, is hereby authorized to reduce the said sum to 
the maximum which is allowed by law. 
 
Section 3:  There is hereby levied on each $100 of the assessed value of all 
property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits of the Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 2, Town of Florence, except such 
property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary property tax rate of 
$0 per $100/NAV for the purpose of providing operations and maintenance for 
the Street Light Improvement District No. 2 for the Fiscal Year ending on the 30th 
day of June, 2017, but if the said sum exceeds the maximum levy allowed by 



law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, is hereby authorized to reduce the 
said sum to the maximum which is allowed by law. 

 
Section 4:  There is hereby levied on each $100 of the assessed value of all 
property, both real and personal, within the corporate limits of the Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch Street Lighting District No. 3, Town of Florence, except such 
property as may by law be exempt from taxation, a secondary property tax rate of 
$0 per $100/NAV for the purpose of providing operations and maintenance for 
the Street Light Improvement District No. 3 for the Fiscal Year ending on the 30th 
day of June, 2017, but if the said sum exceeds the maximum levy allowed by 
law, the Board of Supervisors of Pinal County, is hereby authorized to reduce the 
said sum to the maximum which is allowed by law. 

 
Section 5:  No failure by the officials of Pinal County, Arizona, to properly return 
the delinquent list and no irregularity in the assessment or commission in the 
same, or irregularity of any kind in any proceeding will invalidate such proceeding 
or invalidate any title conveyed by tax deed; nor will any failure or neglect of any 
officer or officers to perform any of the duties assigned to him or to them on the 
day within the time specified work an invalidation of any proceedings or of any 
such deed or sale or affect the validity of the assessment of a levy of taxes or of 
the judgment of sale by which the collection of the same may be enforced or in 
any manner affect the lien of the Town upon such property for the delinquent 
unpaid taxes; thereon, and no overcharge as to part of the taxes or of costs will 
invalidate any of the proceeding upon the lien, therefore, or a sale of the property 
under such foreclosure; and all acts of officers de facto will be valid as if 
performed by officer de jure. 
 
Section 6:  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
Section 7:  The immediate operation of the ordinance is necessary for the 
preservation of the public peace, health, and safety of the Town of Florence, and 
an emergency is hereby declared to exist; and this ordinance shall be in full force 
and effect from its passage and approval by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, and publication as required by the laws of the State of 
Arizona, and is hereby exempt from the referendum provisions of the constitution 
and laws of the State of Arizona. 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, the 18th day of July 2016. 

 
      ________________________________ 
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
 ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



Prior Year's Primary property tax levy:(Last year's primary property tax levy) $893,721

Current Year Estimate of net assessed valuation:(Current year net assessed values) - C4 $80,383,277

Current Year ESTIMATE OF VALUE OF NEW CONSTRUCTION: $2,332,138

Current year Net assessed value minus new construction: - B4 $78,051,139
(Current year net assessed value subject to taxation in prior year)

MAXIMUM TAX RATE THAT CAN BE IMPOSED
WITHOUT A TRUTH IN TAXATION HEARING: 1.1450$                

GROWTH IN PROPERTY TAX LEVY CAPACITY
ASSOCIATED WITH NEW CONSTRUCTION: $26,704

MAXIMUM PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR current year
WITHOUT A TRUTH IN TAXATION HEARING: $920,425

Proposed current year primary property tax levy: (This year's proposed primary propert tax levy) $898,846

PROPOSED current year INCREASE IN PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX
LEVY OVER TNT LEVY, EXCLUSIVE OF NEW CONSTRUCTION: -$21,579

PROPOSED % INCREASE IN current year PRIMARY
PROPERTY TAX LEVY OVER TNT LEVY: -2.34%

PROPOSED current year PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX RATE: $1.1182

PROPOSED INCREASE IN PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX RATE OVER THE TNT RATE: (0.0268)$               

PROPOSED current year PRIMARY PROPERTY
TAX LEVY ON A HOME VALUED AT $100,000: 111.82

current year PRIMARY PROPERTY TAX LEVY ON A HOME VALUED
AT $100,000 IF THE TAX LEVY WAS NOT RAISED: 114.50

-2.68
 

Truth in Taxation Analysis for current year Proposed Levy







 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10c. 

MEETING DATE:  July 18, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jess Knudson, Assistant Town 
Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Update on the Streetscape Project  
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Streetscape Project Presentation                                               Meeting Date:  July 18, 2016 
Page 1 of 3                 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Presentation on the Streetscape Project 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Town of Florence was awarded a TEA-21 grant in approximately 2000, for 
$500,000 ($28,500 Town match) from Federal Highways Administration (FHWA), which 
is administered by Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) to implement 
streetscape improvements on Main Street between Ruggles Street and Butte Avenue.  
The money is to be used to pay for the necessary studies, architectural design and 
construction costs.   
 
In 2006, the Town of Florence organized a Streetscape Committee made up of 
representatives from the Town Council, business owners, partnering agencies and 
others committed to improving our historic downtown.  The committee identified a 
number of improvements that will enhance the historic integrity of the downtown and 
support the downtown business owners.  
 
The improvements originally recommended by the Streetscape Committee included: 
 
• Change out the ballasts in the existing acorn streetlights (LED) 
• Install entryway and directional signage 
• More trees and plants 
• Install permanent crosswalks 
• Improve pedestrian ramps  
• Install bulb-outs in the curbs at the intersections 
• Replace existing deteriorated street furniture 
• Remove gooseneck streetlights and overhead wires 
• Install an informational kiosk 
• Renovate the pass-through that connects the high profile parking lot to Main 

Street. 
 



Subject:  Streetscape Project Presentation                                               Meeting Date:  July 18, 2016 
Page 2 of 3                 

Plans were created to incorporate most of these ideas into a design plan; however, over 
the years, many of the project components were deemed ineligible per the grant 
requirements.  Any work done to the curbs (landscaping, bulb-outs, pass-through, and 
crosswalks improvements) was deemed ineligible, because our pedestrian ramps were 
not ADA compliant, at that time.  The cost to upgrade the pedestrian ramps to meet 
ADA standards was significant, in the context of the existing grant funds and was not 
favored by the Town at that time.  
 
All signage (kiosk, entryway and directional signage) was deemed ineligible per the 
FHWA requirements.  We were also directed by the State Historic Preservation Office 
(SHPO) to not make any improvements to the existing acorn streetlights because, when 
originally installed, they were faux historic streetlights that constituted an adverse effect 
on the Historic District and refurbishing them would repeat the adverse effect.  
Subsequently, SHPO then directed to the Town to remove all of the existing acorn 
streetlights or, at a minimum, funding for the project would be pulled.    
 
Outside of the Streetscape Project funded with the TEA-21 grant, many of the original 
ideas of the Streetscape Committee have been incorporated into the downtown, 
including bulb-outs, ADA compliant pedestrian ramps, permanent crosswalks, more 
plants, and an informational kiosk.    
 
The scope of the Streetscape Project now consists of the: 
 
• Removal of all streetlights (acorn and gooseneck)  
• Installation of a new modern-looking streetlight, per SHPO requirement 
• Installation of new street furniture (benches, trash cans and bike racks)  
 
To complete the overdue project, at ADOT’s request, the Town agreed to allow ADOT 
to administer the project (with Town concurrence) and take the lead on the development 
of the approved design, studies, project bidding and construction management, in order 
to ensure prompt completion of the project.   Those terms were identified in the 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) executed by ADOT and the Town of Florence in 
2013.  
 
The selection of the new streetlight to be installed in the downtown requires SHPO 
concurrence.   The Town and ADOT worked with SHPO to identify a small selection of 
streetlights that were acceptable to SHPO.  The final selection will be made by the 
Town when the scope is finalized, given the options provided by SHPO.  
 
The project has proceeded since the IGA was executed in 2013.  The design is 
completed (SHPO, ADOT and FHWA have signed in concurrence), the project was bid 
out and a general contractor was awarded the contract by ADOT.  Construction is 
expected to begin sometime in September or October of 2016 if no further delays are 
realized.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no fiscal impact to the Town of Florence in relation to this agenda item. 



Subject:  Streetscape Project Presentation                                               Meeting Date:  July 18, 2016 
Page 3 of 3                 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
  
There is no staff recommendation.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Presentation 
 
 
 



Florence Town Council
July 18, 2016



 Funds received through a TEA-21 Grant
 Streetscape-type improvements to Main Street, between 

Ruggles Street and Butte Avenue
 Public input incorporated into the project

 Streetscape Committee
 Council, business owners, Historic District Advisory Commission 

(HDAC),Main Street Program, Redevelopment Commission and 
Town staff. 

 Presentations to the Town Council and HDAC
 Delays to project
 Changes in scope

 Moving forward…



 Removal of all existing streetlights and overhead 
electrical lines
 Goosenecks
 Acorn

 Installation of new energy efficient streetlights
 LED
 Modern-looking (SHPO Approved)

 Placement of new street furniture
 Benches
 Trash cans
 Bike racks





















 ADOT advertised the project
 ADOT selected the contractor who submitted the 

lowest bid
 ADOT executed the contract with the contractor (AJP 

Electric, Phoenix)
 Scope to be finalized

 Minimize hardship to downtown businesses during 
construction

 Respect the structural integrity of the historic buildings
 Construction anticipated to begin in 

September/October















 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
11a. 

MEETING DATE:  July 18, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
Subject: Resolution No. 1592-16 Gila River Indian Community Grant                  Meeting Date: July 18, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1592-16 to accept grant funds  
                   from the Gila River Indian Community 

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1592-16:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ACCEPT 
TRIBAL GAMING FUNDS FROM THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The Gila River Indian Community awarded $66,014 in tribal gaming funds to the 
Florence Police Department in August 2015.  The Florence Police Department 
requested the funding to purchase a third 911 terminal for the dispatch center.  At that 
time, the Gila River Indian Community asked the Town to provide a resolution 
acknowledging willingness to accept the funds.  The Town Council adopted Resolution 
No. 1531-15 authorizing the acceptance of tribal gaming funds from the Gila River 
Indian Community. 
 
The Police Department was unable to purchase the third dispatch console due to 
unanticipated installation and on-going service costs and has requested the grant funds 
be used to purchase nine portable digital police radios.  To facilitate the change in 
project scope, the Gila River Indian Community has requested the Town change its 
original resolution to reflect the new use of the tribal gaming funds.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Gila River Indian Community awarded a $66,014 grant to the Florence Police 
Department.  There is no match required. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends Town Council to adopt Resolution No. 1592-16 to accept the funds 
from the Gila River Indian Community for portable digital police radios.  
 



Subject: Resolution No. 1592-16 Gila River Indian Community Grant                  Meeting Date: July 18, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1592-16 
Resolution No. 1531-15 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1592-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, ACCEPTING TRIBAL GAMING FUNDS GRANTED BY THE 
GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY. 

 
WHEREAS, the Gila River Indian Community has reviewed applications for the 

distribution of gaming revenues through their State Shared Revenue Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence requests funding from the Gila River Indian 
Community for portable digital police radios; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence Police Department is dedicated to promoting 

public safety for its citizens and local businesses. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, that funds will be accepted from the Gila River Indian Community for 
Shared Revenue Funds in the amount of $66,014. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Florence on this 
18th day of July, 2016. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 
 
I, the undersigned, being the duly appointed and qualified Town Clerk of the Town of 
Florence, certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 1592-16 is a true, correct and 
accurate copy as passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Florence Town 
Council, held on the 18th day of July, 2016 at which a quorum was present and voted in 
favor of said Resolution No. 1592-16. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 





 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
11b. 

MEETING DATE:  July 18, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1593-16 to accept grant funds 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject: Resolution no. 1593-16 for HIDTA 26 Agreement   Meeting Date: July 18, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

awarded for High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA)  Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1593-16 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER 
INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF TUCSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
REGARDING THE ARIZONA HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
This grant is awarded annually to the Town of Florence and provides for an officer to 
participate in the City of Tucson High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) program. 
The program provides wages and benefits for the participating officer.  The grant period 
will be from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017.  The agreement was received 
in June. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
HIDTA is awarding $79,254 to pay for wages and benefits.  There is no Town match. 
The grant will pay for a maximum of $17,400 in overtime wages and $12,371 in fringe 
benefits. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council adopt Resolution No. 1593-16 to accept the funds from 
HIDTA.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1593-16 
Grant agreement 



RESOLUTION NO. 1593-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO A GRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF TUCSON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
REGARDING THE ARIZONA HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING 
AREA. 

 
 WHEREAS, THIS GRANT-IN-AID (“Grant”) is entered into as of the 18th day of 
July, 2016, by and between the CITY OF TUCSON POLICE DEPARTMENT (“CTPD”) 
and the TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation (“TOWN”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is hereby acknowledged that CTPD now has the authority to 
administer and subsequently award federal High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area 
purpose of performing covert undercover operations to reduce narcotic trafficking and 
related crimes including burglaries, gang violence, and use of illegal weapons through 
recognized area narcotics task forces; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this program was previously administered through the Arizona 
Criminal Justice Commission (“ACJC”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, through the HIDTA 26 grant cycle, CTPD has now awarded such 
grant funds in the amount of $79,254 to the TOWN for the cost of officer salary, fringe 
benefits, and overtime in order to achieve these purposes as a member of the Pinal 
County Narcotics Task Force (“PCNTF”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to execute the agreement by formal resolution of the 
Mayor and Town Council, and that this resolution shall hereby be made a part thereof 
and incorporated into the agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CTPD is authorized to enter into this agreement pursuant to A.R.S. 
§ 11-951, et seq. as well as City of Tucson Resolution number 21460 and the TOWN is 
authorized to enter into this agreement pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, to execute this agreement with CTPD. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the majority vote of the Town Council of the Town 
of Florence, Arizona, on this the 18th day of July 2016. 
 
        __________________________ 
        Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
_________________________    __________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 
        









































MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
JUNE 6, 2016, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:04 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL:      
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall. 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 1 of 19 

Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 
 
Public hearing on an application received from Kevin Arnold Kramber, Green Tree 
Inn & Suites, located at 240 W. Highway 287, Florence, Arizona, for a transfer of a 
Type 7 Beer and Wine Liquor License, and for Council recommendation for 
approval or disapproval of said license.   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that staff has posted this 
location for 20 days prior to tonight’s meeting.  Staff is requesting that Council postpone 
the public hearing to the June 20, 2016 Town Council meeting.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff is working with the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses 
and Control, as well as the applicant, with regards to licensing before staff can make a 
proper recommendation.   
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 2 of 19 

Ms. Garcia stated the the facility, previously known as the Holiday Inn, is asking for a 
personal transfer underneath the Title 7 license versus a Title 11 license.  She stated 
that there are different requirements that need to be met.  The Town will meet with the 
State on June 14, 2016, to find out if the transfer is a person-to-person transfer and the 
location is not considered, or whether or not the Town Council is supposed to consider 
the location and all rules associated with the location. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he thought that the hotel had not applied for a 
license previously because of their proximity to the high school.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the facility currently has a beer and wine liquor license.  The 
application before the Council is for an applicant-to-applicant transfer and the applicant 
is the same.  The only change is for the business name which changes from Holiday Inn 
to Green Tree.  She said the original license was approved in 2013 by both the Town 
Council and the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control.   
 
Discussion occurred with regards to the proximity of the Florence High School and 
nearby churches.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that she will include a map with distances in the upcoming Council 
packet.  She noted that inspectors will be onsite at the meeting.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
table the application to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control to the 
June 20, 2016 Council meeting.   
 
Public Hearing on the use of Fiscal Year 2016 Community Development Block 
Grant Regional Account/State Special Project funds, as required for submission 
of the grant application.   
 
Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, stated the Town is eligible to apply for 
$278,483 from the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Regional Account 
(RA) Funds through the Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH).  The Town applies for 
these funds every two years and partners with the City of Winkelman who split the 
ability to apply every other year.  She stated that the Town is wrapping up the 2014 
Fiscal Year funds in which the Town was able to complete the rehabilitation of four 
homes.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that they are soliciting input from the public on the use of 2016 CDBG 
Funds.  She stated that the first properly noticed public hearing was held at Town Hall 
on August 11, 2015, and they received input from two residents who were supportive of 
doing additional housing rehabilitation projects.  Another resident supported doing 
commercial rehabilitation projects on Main Street.  There was also staff input that 
included improvements to the Florence Senior Center as well as the new library.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that tonight is the second and final public hearing.  She stated at the 
June 20, 2016 Town Council meeting, staff would like to forward a resolution to Council 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 3 of 19 

for approval to use the funds for a specific project.  The following projects have been 
proposed by the citizens and Town staff: 
 
- Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation in the Town of Florence 
- Infrastructure Improvements – Fire Hydrant and Water Line Replacement  
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired about the additional $300,000 in funding. 
 
Ms. Evans responded that the $300,000 is a separate fund as part of the CDBG 
program, and that application cycle occurs in the early spring months.  She stated that 
typically, there is approximately $300,000 available to apply for similar types of projects.  
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that it is his understanding that there are problems 
with the Senior Citizen van and that there is money available through grants for 
transportation, handicap, and disability needs.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that a senior citizen van has been mentioned before; however, she 
would need to check the eligibility requirements.  There are funding priorities that are 
established by ADOH and their allocation priorities are 41% for public infrastructure 
projects; 29% for housing rehab, and smaller portions that the Town would have to find 
how it would fit in one of the categories.        
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the funding is very competitive for the State Special Projects 
(SSP) funds.  
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that if the Town wants to purchase an 
elderly and persons with disabilities van, there is a grant source called Section 5310 
Program and the Town should be applying to that program for the van.  It is a Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) Formula fund.   
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that she received input from the public this morning, and read into the 
record an email she received from Bonnie Bariola, President, Florence Preservation 
Foundation: 
 
“On behalf of the Florence Preservation Foundation, I am requesting the Town 
designate some of the CDBG Funds to assist  owners of downtown commercial 
buildings - both occupied & unoccupied - to bring their buildings up-to-code so they can 
be occupied or made safer.   Do not make it really difficult for the owners to utilize the 
funds - for example, if a Business Plan is needed, the grant monies could pay for the 
Business Plan.   Perhaps emphasize fire protection be done for the buildings since that 
seems to be the biggest issue the Town is having with the owners now.    
 
The Silver King Marketplace needs to have the bricks repointed and the Carriage House 
needs a complete rehabilitation so funds could also be made available for these 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 4 of 19 

purposes.  Some of the interiors of the four suites also need additional updates, too. 
Utilizing the funds for these purposes would benefit all residents of the Town.   
 
This would provide Economic Development for the Town to have additional businesses 
open plus would encourage tourism if more buildings had a viable business in them, 
and I believe Historic Preservation is one of the suggested things CDBG funds can be 
used for.  Those buildings would be "open to the public" which I believe is required for 
the funds.     
 
Bonnie Bariola, Florence Preservation Foundation” 

 
Mayor Rankin inquired how many homes were provided services in the last cycle.  He 
also inquired if there are still names of people on the list who have qualified or could 
qualify in the upcoming cycle.  
 
Ms. Evans responded that four homes were rehabilitated.  She stated that she believes 
a new qualification process needs to be done as there were two additional families who 
qualifed; however, there were not enough funds available to finish their projects.  There 
are potentially two more homes that may qualify as well.  If the Town wanted to do 
housing rehabilitation it would be beneficial to open the process back up to the public 
and re-qualify everyone because the standards have changed slightly.  
  
Mayor Rankin inquired if public infrastructure can be considered as a project. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that public infrastructure can be considered as a project. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired how much can be done with the $278,000 with regards to 
replacing the fire hydrants, water lines, etc. in order to get sufficient water supply to the 
hydrants. 
 
Mr. David Strayer, Fire Chief, stated that Main Street is problematic due to the flow and 
there are low flow areas in the downtown area.  He said he would defer the costs to Mr. 
Billingsley to answer. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Mr. Strayer considers where the water is not flowing properly 
to be a health, safety and fire hazard for the community, 
 
Mr. Strayer stated that under the current arrangement, the Town needs to do something 
about the low flow for those buildings.  He stated that there are other options available 
and will provide a presentation to the Council when the time is right to discuss the 
options in terms of drastically improving the fire safety of the downtown area.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that under the CDBG item, he would like to see the presentation.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that a number of things are being considered at this time.  He 
stated that if Council votes to have staff move forward with infrastructure, it is important 
to point out that there is a prioritization associated with what the funds can be used for.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 5 of 19 

Some infrastructure is easier to fund than others.  He stated that he has done two fire 
improvement projects In Maricopa with CDBG funding inclusive of a hydrant 
replacement project, specifically, the competitive funds and a portion of a water tank 
and water line improvement project.    
 
Mr. Billingsley stated, in terms of Florence, there are three specific things that are very 
important, which include.  The three specific items include: 
 

1. Undersized waterlines in this Town:  In terms of fluid dynamics, the larger the 
pipe, the more flow and pressure you can generate; it also assists with storage in 
the system.  In terms of duration of flow where the amount of time and amount of 
water pressure can be fed to a building.  You are not supposed to have, under 
current standards, a fire hydrant on a line that is smaller than six inches.  He said 
the Town has a number of lines in Town that are three and four inches that have 
hydrants.  There is a whole number of water lines that could be replaced for fire 
flow requirements for public safety.            

 
2. Fire Hydrants and infrastructure:  the Town, through the Fire Department, had 

done a study and flow tests on all public fire hydrants in Florence, including those 
that are with Johnson Utilities.  Staff is currently assembling data for private 
hydrants.  Any owners of private hydrants are required to do flow tests once per 
year.  They are going to present that data to the Chief and the information will be 
put into the Town’s GIS system.  The Town will have that data available in the 
fire trucks as part of the dispatching.  There are a number of areas where the 
Town has lower flows and old hydrants that need to be replaced.  In addition, in 
some portions of Town, we can certainly utilize an upgraded booster system to 
boost pressures to assist in fighting fires.  Staff has already talked about the 
need for the booster project at Well # 5, or where the old water tower is.  The fact 
that the booster is set up is archaic could certainly be part of an infrastructure 
upgrade.   
 

3. Provision of Infrastructure in the Historic Downtown to assist in trying to save 
those buildings:  There are opportunities not only to take a look at the 
infrastructure that is downtown, but to provide things like common risers.  In 
order to get taps to those mains behind those buildings and install the 
infrastructure.  If the Town were to provide taps for fire sprinkler systems for all of 
the buildings downtown or common risers for the buildings downtown, it would 
significantly reduce the costs to the property owner to sprinkle those buildings.   
 

Mr. Billingsley stated that the above are some samples of the projects that could be 
completed based on that application. Staff would do that in a way to utilize the funds 
that are available and give ourselves the opportunity to ask Council for additional funds 
through RCIP.   
 
Chief Strayer stated that staff has a good idea of where the problem areas are and have 
a high confidence level of what needs to be done.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 6 of 19 

Mayor Rankin stated that he would like to see a presentation prior to making a decision.  
Council needs to have all the information they can prior to making a decision on the 
CDBG application.   
 
Mayor Rankin closed the public hearing.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff is requesting direction as to which project(s) Council is 
requesting in order to draft the resolution for Council’s consideration at the next Council 
meeting.  She inquired if Council would prefer that staff provide two resolutions with 
options for Council to consider on the floor.  Staff needs to prepare the documents for 
the next meeting and add it to the agenda.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired when the deadline was to submit the application. 
 
Ms. Evans responded that the grant application deadline is August 1, 2016. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Ms. Evans will have sufficient time to submit the application if 
the item is approved at the June 20, 2016 Council meeting. 
 
Ms. Evans responded that she would have sufficient time. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff was planning on bringing a resolution forward at the June 
20, 2016 Town Council meeting for adoption selecting their choice of project(s).  Staff 
can prepare two resolutions: one for housing rehabilitation and one for infrastructure 
improvements, and Council can choose their preference by adopting one of the two 
resolutions.   
 
Councilmember Wall requested to see an estimate of the cost for the rehabilitation and 
an estimated cost for the infrastructure improvement.   
   
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired if there are any other grants that may assist with the fire 
hydrant and water line improvements so staff can go after both projects through two 
different entities.   
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that she believed the funding for the fire hydrants and 
water line replacements are in the utility water fund.  She added that she in not sure if 
they are still included or have been removed.  She understood that the money for these 
types of projects was to be drawn from this fund.  She stated that the risers for the fire 
suppression could be included in the grant; however, the other portion should be 
through the water fund.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that it could be funded out of the enterprise funds for water, but 
staff was hoping to not impact the enterprise fund and utilize other funds so they can 
hold the balance for other projects.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 7 of 19 

Councilmember Guilin stated that the monies that are collected from the water user fees 
are supposed to be used for these purposes such as fire hydrants and water line 
replacements.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has lots of projects and only $5 million.  It is 
estimated that the total for all the projects equates to approximately $40 million.  He 
stated that staff is trying to complete as many projects as possible. 
 
Ms. Evans responded to Vice-Mayor Walter’s question regarding grants.  She stated 
that there may be other grants but she would need to verify funding possibilities.   
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that Jake Sample is an avid grant writer and may be a 
resource to reach out to.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that WIFA is another option; however, it would be for a loan. He 
stated that if the Town has money in the water fund, it would be better to spend our 
money rather than to take out a loan to do a project.  He is not familiar with any other 
grants aside from SSP and CDBG to use for the infrastructure projects.   
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that last owner-occupied housing rehabilitation project was 
done on a first come first serve basis.  She inquired if that had changed to some type of 
rubric based on necessity. 
 
Ms. Evans stated that the process needs to be re-evaluated and changes will need to 
be made.      
  
Presentation from the 150th Anniversary Ad Hoc Committee.   
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, stated that they have several events 
planned for the upcoming six months.  
 
Ms. Alison Feliz, Recreation Programmer, stated that at the Fourth of July Freedom 
Fest event the pool will be open from 12:00 pm to 5:00 pm with festivities starting at 
Heritage Park at 3:00 pm.  There will be various tournaments, food vendors, a live band 
and the fireworks display will start at 8:30 pm.   
 
Ms. Feliz discussed other upcoming events, which include:  
- Movie in the Park 

 The Good Dinosaur 
 September 17, 2016  
 Aquatics Center Multi-Purpose Field 

- Movie in the Park 
 Zootopia 
 October 15, 2016 

- Halloween Fright Fest  
 October 31. 2016 
 Trying to get local organizations to run the game booths  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 8 of 19 

 Food Vendors will be present 
 Pumpkin Carving Contest 
 Costume Contest 

- Jr. Parada Parade  
 November 26, 2016  

- Christmas on Main  
 December 2, 2016  

 
Mr. Hughes outlined the proposed upcoming events, which include: 
- Florence Carnival 

 The four-day carnival would lead up to the annual Halloween Fright Fest held on 
Halloween night. 

 Cost to the Town:  $500 for marketing only 
 Thursday-Sunday, October 27-30,  2016 at Heritage Park 

- Military Appreciation Day 
 All present and past military personnel are invited to Heritage Park as we honor 

their service.  
 There will be various speakers from the community, food and merchandise 

vendors, music and activities lined up for all to enjoy. 
 Cost to the Town:  Estimated $3,500 
 Working with the American Legion and Masonic Lodge 
 November 5, 2016 at Heritage Park 

- Barrel Racing and Roping Event 
 Coordinate with Pinal County Mounted Posse to bring a new barrel racing and 

roping event to the Whitlow Rodeo Grounds. 
 Cost to the Town:  Estimated $3,500 
 Date to be determined; however it will be at the rodeo grounds 

- New Year’s Eve Spectacular 
 This street festival will close out 2016 in style featuring live entertainment, food 

vendors, and more.   
 Wrap up the night with a small fireworks display 
 Similar to Road to Country Thunder event 
 Cost to the Town: Estimated $10,000+ 
 Saturday, December 31st @ Historic Downtown Florence 

 
Financial Summary 
- Revenues (Sponsorships) - $23,135 
- Expenditures:  Year to date 

 Banners - $4,404 
 Merchandise - $1,176 
 Future Events 

 Carnival - $500 
 Barrel Racing & Roping Event - $3,500 
 Military Appreciation Day - $3,500 
 Street Festival - $10,000 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 9 of 19 

Mr. Hughes thanked the sponsors for their generosity.  He stated that the meetings take 
place on the fourth Wednesday of every month and the next meeting will be June 22, 
2016 at 5:00 pm. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the big event will be the New Year’s Event which will be a 
family event.     
 

CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.  

 
Ratification to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of 
Florence and the Florence Unified School District #1, for joint-use of recreation 
facilities effective March 1, 2016, for a two year period.  
 
Authorization for disposal of all items, as listed on the June 2016 disposal list, as 
set by policy.   
 
Approval of accepting the register of demands ending April 30, 2016, in the 
amount of $1,978,661.74.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of Item A. 
 
Ratification to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of 
Florence and the Florence Unified School District #1, (FUSD) for joint-use of 
recreation facilities effective March 1, 2016, for a two year period.  
 
Councilmember Anderson is pleased that the Town and the school are sharing facilities, 
but is curious as to what benefit the Town receives in the partnership.   
 
Mr. Hughes stated the the Parks and Recreation Department utilizes space at the 
Florence K-8 and Anthem K-8 schools for the After the Bell Program.  They also utilize 
the gymnasium at the Florence K-8 School for open gym, youth basketball and other 
similar programs.  An analysis of the Town’s use and FUSD’s use was completed and 
the Town uses their facilities quite a bit more than the school uses the Town facilities.    
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that it is a great opportunity especially when two 
governmental organizations can work together.  It saves the taxpayers money.    
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried 
to approve entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of 
Florence and the Florence Unified School District #1, for joint-use of recreation facilities 
effective March 1, 2016, for a two year period. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 10 of 19 

Resolution No. 1586-16:  
 
Ms. Garcia, read Resolution No. 1586-16 by title only.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
CANVASSING THE VOTES AND DECLARING AND ADOPTING THE RESULTS OF 
THE SPECIAL ELECTION HELD ON MAY 17, 2016.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Town has 4,687 registered voters.  She stated for the May 
17, 2016 election, 2,065 voters cast their votes, for a 44% voter turnout.  She stated that 
of those voters, 1,460 voted yes, 464 voted no and 141 were under votes.  Under votes 
means it is people who chose not to vote that ballot measure for that election.  She 
stated that 76% of the voters that cast votes voted yes and 24% of the voters voted no.  
She said by majority, the election was successful and staff is recommending that 
Council adopt Resolution No. 1586-16.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1586-16. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of consideration of council member items 
requested for inclusion in the 2016-2017 tentative budget. 
 
Mr. Gabe Garcia, Finance Director, provided a presentation on the additional items 
presented for consideration, which included: 
 
- General Fund Budget Update 
Estimated Fund Balance: June 30, 2016 $5,237,668   
Projected Revenues Fiscal Year 2016-2017 $14,784,648* 
Projected Expenditures Fiscal Year 2016-2017 $14,716,584* 
Estimated Revenues to Expenditure $68,064* 
Estimated Fund Balance: June 30, 2017 $5,259,189* 
*These are estimated changes based on revised revenue estimates and more accurate 
personnel costs. 
 
- Background Discussion 

• Proposed tentative budget was presented to Council at a work session. 
• After this session, staff received four additional requests that require Council 

direction. 
• If all Council requested projects were added to the General Fund under a Council 

line item, the projected $64,064 surplus would become a $58,436 deficit that 
would require the use of Town savings to balance the budget. 

• To aid in Council’s decision, staff has looked at alternatives to ensure we 
maintain a balanced budget.  

 
 
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 11 of 19 

- Value of Council requests 
Project Name Amount 
East Valley Partnership $2,500 
Façade Program $50,000 
Lighted School Zone Beacons $30,000 
Intersections (Main Street) $40,000 
Total Requests: $122,500 
 
- Option to help maintain a balanced budget 
General Fund Effect 
Add East Valley Partnership $ 2,500 
Remove Pinal Governmental Alliance ($1,500) 
Total change to General Fund $ 1,000 
 
 Grant Fund Effect 
Add Façade Program $50,000 
Add Lighted School Zone Beacons $30,000 
 Total change to General Fund $0 
  
 
Staff could search for grants for the Façade Program and the lighted school zone 
beacons in the upcoming fiscal year.  Should no funding sources be available, both 
items can be budgeted for in the following fiscal year. 
 
HURF Fund Effect 
Add intersection (Main) $40,000 
Total change to HURF $40,000 
 
- Revised projected revenue to expenditures 
 Current 

Reserves 
Revised 

Reserves 
General Fund $68,064 $67,064 
Grants Fund $0 $0 
HURF $686,498 $646,498 
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she would prefer to use the word “reserves” rather than 
“surplus” and to not deplete its reserves.   
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she agreed with Councilmember Wall and inquired what 
are the pros and cons for the East Valley Partnership versus what the Town currently 
has.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the value is economic value. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 12 of 19 

Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town is not and has not participated in the Pinal 
Governmental Alliance.  He stated that there is a value in discontinuing that $1,500 
regardless of what Council chooses.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge questioned the cost of membership.  She stated that she 
saw the cost to be $3,500 in the information packet provided. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated the fee is $2,500 due to the Town’s size and population. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the information packet provided thoroughly explains the value 
it provides in being a member.  He stated that the growth pattern of the community 
needs to be reviewed.  The membership opens a lot of doors to organizations that the 
Town did not have access to before.  He stated that the Town has seen many 
incentives by joining Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) such as refinancing 
and a street sweeper valued at $175,000. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he cannot elaborate on all of the benefits that the Town will 
reap from joining the East Valley Partnership; but he wasn’t able to elaborate on the 
benefits of joining MAG were when the Town first joined them either.  He stated that he 
believes the East Valley Partnership will be instrumental with regards to the North South 
Corridor.   
 
Discussion occurred on how each of the items will be funded and the possibility of 
grants for some of the projects.  
 
Discussion occurred on projects on Main Street and the possibility of extending them to 
south Main Street.  
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that staff needs to prepare a policy on the façade program 
on how the monies will be awarded.  She stated that there is a lot of technicalities 
involved and how much can be awarded to each individual.   
 
Discussion occurred on a façade program, guidelines and legal issues. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he agreed with the need for a policy for the façade program. 
He stated that it could easily take six plus months to create the guidelines and work out 
the legal issues.  He stated that it is against the Constitution of the State of Arizona, 
under the gift clause, to use General Fund monies for a façade program.   
 
Discussion occurred on funding possibilities for a façade program.   
 
Mr. Garcia explained how grant funding operates and how it is incorporated into the 
budget.  
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired if the $40,000 for the Main Intersection project will affect 
other budgeted projects, as there are several roads in dire need of improvement.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 13 of 19 

Mr. Billingsley explained how the HURF monies are utilized.  He stated that it would not 
impact the other projects.   
 
Mr. Billingsley explained how the $40,000 total was derived and that the amount is not a 
do not exceed amount. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the provisions would be made to see if it is possible 
for the Public Works staff to do the work in house before it is contracted out. 
 
Councilmember Guilin asked where the flashing beacons will be located. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the beacons will be located at the entrances to the school 
zones at the elementary school.   
 
Mr. Jess Knudson, Assistant Town Manager, stated that it would be for four signs at 
Anthem K-8 and eight signs at Florence K-8.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has approved the Manual for Uniform for Traffic 
Control Devices (MUTCD), which are the federal standards for traffic control.  Some of 
the equipment may not comply with the MUTCD, and would require an engineering 
design to ensure that it is correct and in compliance to protect the Town from liability.   
      
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired if the Town has communicated with the Florence Unified 
School District (District) with regards to the beacons.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that staff went on site with the District and discussed the school 
zones at length.   
 
Discussion occurred on where the locations of the beacons would be.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the beacons would be in locations other than where cross 
guards are present.  He stated that it was the District’s perspective that  they did not 
believe that there was a history of complaints or safety concerns from the parents.  He 
stated that the beacons would be above and beyond what is required at school 
crossings.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that the beacons would be in areas where there is 
school speed limit.    
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired why this project is being proposed since the schools 
are not having any problems nor did the District approach the Town.  He inquired if the 
request was made by a Councilmember. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that this project was proposed by a councilmember.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 14 of 19 

Councilmember Anderson stated that the problem is the parents. He stated that they 
are driving with children in the crosswalks and they have almost hit the cross guard on 
several occasions.    
 
Discussion occurred on enforcement within the problematic areas as well as forwarding 
these issues to the District.     
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the District stated that they had received no complaints.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he has spoken with the two individual cross 
guards at the Anthem K-8 School and they have addressed their concerns to the 
principal.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that this project should be on hold until they get a 
request from the District.   
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated that there will be people who speed through the 
school zones periodically.  She stated that this project is a want and not a need and 
until the budget is in better shape, she believes this project can be put on hold.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the project is allowable under the MUTCD and there is a 
design standard for flashing beacons.  The beacons would enhance the safety under 
the MUTCD.  The idea of flashing beacons was not discussed with the District.  They 
discussed the school zone, crosswalks, speed limits, the implementation and the desire 
to move locations of crosswalks for the students. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin and 
carried to authorize the following to the Tentative Budget document:  
 
General Fund: 

Add East Valley Partnership membership  $2,500 
Remove Pinal Governmental Alliance ($1,500) 

Total change to General Fund:    $1,000 
 
Grants Fund: 

Add Façade Program    $50,000 
Add Lighted School Zone Beacons  $30,000 

Total change to General Fund:     $        0 
 
 
Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) 

Add intersection (Main)    $40,000 
Total change to HURF    $40,000 
 
Resolution No. 1588-16:  
 

Ms. Garcia, read Resolution No. 1588-16 by title only.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 15 of 19 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ACCEPTING A PROPERTY EASEMENT FOR TOWN DIRECTIONAL SIGNAGE ON 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF STATE HIGHWAY 79 
AND THE MAIN STREET EXTENSION AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE 
TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the request is for 
acceptance of an easement to allow for a Town directional sign on the northwest corner 
of where the new Main Street extension reaches State Highway 79.  The sign will be 
two sided and work for traffic coming in both directions.  Staff has worked with the 
property owners, Yole, LLC and they have provided an easement to the Town at no 
cost.  A surveyor prepared a legal description for the site and marked where the sign 
would go.  He stated that there is no time frame on the easement other than at some 
point they have other plans to develop the property and would notify the Town that the 
Town would a certain timeframe in which to remove the sign from the site.  The Town 
does not foresee any eminent development on the property at this time.     
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the directional sign will assist motorists in using the extension to 
get them into the central business district.  Staff researched signage and has provided 
three options for Council to review.  One option depicts the courthouse, the other a 
rodeo, and the last has the Town logo.  The signs are constructed the same and the 
cost is similar in price.  Along with the cost of the sign is an option to add solar electrical 
to each option for illumination.  Staff recommends that the signs be lit.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff discussed the similarities and differences of each of the three options.  He 
stated that the cost may vary slightly; however, none of the options will exceed $16,000. 
 
Discussion occurred on the colors, styles, height, illumination, and wording of the sign. 
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. 1588-16. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of approving a Central Business District 
directional signage at the northwest corner of State Highway 79 and the Main 
Street extension with (or without) external illumination for an amount not too 
exceed $16,000.  
 
Discussion occurred on the colors, styles, height, illumination, solar panel location and 
wording of the sign. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that external flood lights would be aimed at both faces of the sign.  
 
Councilmember Wall stated that her option would be the logo option as it includes the 
symbols of the other two options.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 16 of 19 

Councilmember Woolridge and Councilmember Guilin agreed with Councilmember 
Wall’s choice of options.  
 
Councilmember Woolridge requested that the sign be illuminated.  She asked the other 
existing monument signs be illuminated as well. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired where the funding will come from. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated the sign will be paid for with the Economic Development Fund in the 
next fiscal year.     
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Economic Development has approximately $100,000 and 
this item, if approved, will be included in the tentative budget.  He stated that $0 has 
been budgeted in next year’s budget.  
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she would like to see the Town signs be consistent and 
maintained.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired what the cost was for the monument signs that are 
located by National Bank of Arizona and the Green Leaf Hotel.   
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the signs cost approximately $20,000 each.  The signs do not 
have solar connection because they were able to connect to electrical panels.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that staff will come before Council for the proper wording and 
coloring of the sign at a later time.   
 
Vice-Mayor Walter would like to see citizen input and inquired if an ad can be placed in 
the local newspaper to have the public go online to vote for the sign they would prefer to 
see.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, to 
approve Option D, with the logo, for a directional signage at the northwest corner of 
State Highway 79 and Main Street extension with external illumination for an amount 
not to exceed $16,000. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
 
Councilmember Woolridge:  Yes 
Councilmember Guilin:  Yes 
Councilmember Anderson:  Yes 
Councilmember Wall:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  No 
Vice-Mayor Walter:  No 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
 
Motion carried:  Yes: 5; No:  2 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 17 of 19 

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Billingsley read into the record a listing of candidates who have submitted all of their 
information necessary to be a candidate, which includes:  
 
Mayoral Candidates: 
Mr. Gem Cox 
Mr. Tom Rankin 
Ms. Tara Walter 
 
Council Candidates: 
Mr. Storm Cox 
Ms. Michelle Duron 
Mr. William Hawkins 
Ms, Kristen Larsen 
Ms. Karen Wall 
 
Mr. Billingsley introduced Mr. Christopher Salas, Public Works Director/Town Engineer, 
who started with the Town ten days ago. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated there are several events taking place in the Town, which include: 
- Summer Kids Club and Camp 
- Aquatics Center is now open Tuesday through Sunday 

 Swim lessons 
 Shark Swim Team 
 Teen Pool Party last Friday of every month 
 Morning and even lap swim for adults 

- Fitness Center has a variety of exercise classes for adults 
- Senior Center has several day trips scheduled 
- Library  

 Summer Ready Program 
 Showing of Zootopia Movie on June 10, 2016 
 Showing of Finding Nemo movie on June 17, 2016 
 Adult discussion on the film called “Who is Jim?” 
 June 11, 2016 Monthly Movie Presentation called “Race” 

 
Councilmember Wall inquired about the person “Koko” that was referenced in the 
Department Report. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that one of the challenges proposed by Council and the Budget 
Committee was to do more for the teens.  In particular, Council wanted to know how 
staff interfaces with the teens and promotes their leadership while using their energy, 
expertise and knowledge to get the youth involved in contributing and volunteering in 
the Town.  As part of that, the Town has enlisted Kim Hunter, also known as Koko, who 
has come out gratis, to assist with a number of events to gauge what Florence’s teens 
are interested in and where they need help in terms of leadership.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 18 of 19 

Mr. Billingsley stated that the first event was held at the high school during lunch before 
school was released for the summer.  There were approximately 20 students who 
signed up for the event.  Koko attended the Pool Party on May 27, 2016 and an 
additional 25 students signed up who wanted to be part of the Teen Program.  He 
stated that he and Ms. Garcia will speak about leadership at an event tomorrow 
afternoon at the Library.  He noted that monies are earmarked in the budget to fund a 
teen program, should Council desire to do so.  He thanked Mr. Hunter for his 
assistance. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

Community Development 
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Library 
Parks and Recreation 
Police 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired about one of the Parks and Recreation Department staff 
member’s receiving an award. 
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, stated that American City and 
County Magazine had an article about young professionals making a difference in their 
community.  The Parks and Recreation Department nominated Ms. Alison Feliz, 
Recreation Programmer, for the Inaugural Igniting the Flame Award.  Ms. Feliz has 
worked for the Town since she was 15 years old and became a full time member when 
she was 20 years old.  The criteria for the award were very specific to her situation.  The 
Department is very proud of her and stated that you can vote for her online.  The 
Department is very eager to see if she wins.    
 
The Department Reports were received and filed.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Florence Resident, stated that Second Chance Prom is a fundraiser 
being sponsored by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce.  It will be held on 
June 11, 2016 at the Windmill Winery.  She invited everyone to attend and support the 
Chamber.    
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Governing Board of the Pinal Regional Transportation 
Authority appointed him to be Chairman.  He stated that they will be visiting throughout 
Pinal County presenting on the need to increase the property tax.  The goal is to raise 
approximately $660 million in the next twenty years.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 

June 6, 2016 

Page 19 of 19 

Councilmember Wall commended Town staff and Councilmembers who participated in 
the communications regarding Proposition 408 and the success of passing the 
proposition.   
 
Vice-Mayor Walter congratulated Ms. Feliz on the nomination and encouraged everyone 
to vote for her.  She stated that you can vote once per day.   
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that when she voted no for the sign it was not so much as 
what it was but rather to find consistency in the signs and where the signs are being 
placed.  She supports the option chosen for the sign.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the next election will be in August and the Council should be 
supporting the Home Rule to ensure that it passes.  He asked the citizens to support the 
Council if they think the Council has done a good job.  He stated that every vote counts.     
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:50 pm. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on June 6, 2016, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, JUNE 
20, 2016, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 
775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.          
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL:    
 
Present:  Rankin, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson, Wall 
Absent:  Walter   
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 1 of 15 

MOMENT OF SILENCE  
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town 
Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to 
review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open 
call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 
Ms. Bonnie Bariola, Florence Preservation Foundation President, stated that she has been 
restoring historic properties since 1988.  She provided an update on the 2016 Historic 
Preservation Conference that was held last week.  She stated that she is a member of the 
Conference Planning Committee, on behalf of the Florence Preservation Foundation.  She 
stated that Mr. Eckhoff, Community Development Director, facilitated a session in which he 
discussed the Silver King Marketplace and Padilla Park.  She and Regis McKay provided a 
workshop on adobe construction and rehabilitation.  She explained what the presentation and 
workshop entailed and that the Florence Preservation Foundation provided funding for the 
printing of “The Book on Adobe” for each person.   
 
Ms. Bariola stated that she, Stephanie Rowe, Architect, and Gem Cox, property owner, did a 
presentation on the Smith Building, formerly known as Gentry’s Market and now houses 
Conquest Arms.  She discussed the history of Florence and how Main Street evolved.  Ms. 
Rowe discussed the architectural components of the building and Mr. Cox discussed the project 
from the owner’s prospective and the unique aspects of the building.  She stated that the next 
phase of the project is to complete the façade on the front of the building.  She expressed the 
importance of completing the interior and bringing it up to code first in order to have a business 
occupy the building and then to start work on the façade.   
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 2 of 15 

Ms. Bariola stated that it would be beneficial for the Council and the public to see the 
presentation and requested a work session in the late summer or early fall.     
 
Ms. Bariola stated that the Arizona Preservation Conference is one of the best historic 
preservation conferences in the United States and there were over 300 people in attendance 
with some attendees from other countries.  The Florence Preservation Foundation has been a 
conference sponsor for five years.   
 
Ms. Bariola thanked the Florence Parks and Recreation Committee for the colored brochures on 
Florence’s events that were included in the conference bags.  She stated she has sought 
donations for the fees for the conference bags for several years and now has a permanent 
donor for the bags. 
 
Mr. Jim Tchida, Florence Resident, thanked the Council for discussing the facade improvement 
for residences, and not only those of commercial buildings as well as for researching funding 
options.  He stated the Town of Queen Creek and the City of Maricopa have done something 
similar to what is being proposed.  He stated the legwork has already been done and provided 
copies to Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, and Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town 
Clerk.  
  
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATIONS  
 
Continuation of the June 6, 2016 Public Hearing on an application received from Kevin 
Arnold Kramber, Green Tree Inn & Suites, located at 240 W. Highway 287, Florence, 
Arizona, for a transfer of a Type 7 Beer and Wine Liquor License, and for Council 
recommendation for approval or disapproval of stated license.  (Lisa Garcia)    
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the public hearing was started 
on June 6, 2016 and staff recommended that the public hearing be tabled until the June 20, 
2016, Council meeting after receiving notification that the Town needed to meet with the State.   
The meeting with the State took placed on June 13, 2016, and the issues were discussed.  She 
stated that the applicant is pulling their application for this license.  It is requested that Council 
continue with the public hearing, receive comments, and close the public hearing without 
making a recommendation.   
 
Mayor Rankin opened the public hearing from June 6, 2016.  There were no public comments 
Mayor Rankin closed the public hearing.  
 
Presentation on the status of the Town’s Strategic Plan effort and introduction of the 
facilitator, Karalea Cox with Common Sense Facilitation, selected to assist the Town with 
this project. (Mark Eckhoff) 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, provided a brief update on the Strategic 
Plan Project, which included: 

- Project is on schedule 
- Working on the development stakeholder list 
- Working on stakeholder questions 
- Reviewing surveys and questionnaires 
- Setting up community meetings   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 3 of 15 

- Public meetings are scheduled to start in August 2016 
- Web based survey will be online in the near future  

• Target date is July 4, 2016  
 May be paper survey and will also contain information as to where they can fill out 

the survey online. 
- Working with a facilitator and Town Manager on the development of a citizens’ panel 

which will be comprised of a diverse group of individuals who represent various 
geographic areas of the community. 

- Facilitator has started questionnaire process with the Council and prospective members 
of Council  

 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that all of the information will be incorporated into the formulation of the 
Strategic Plan.  He stated that a lot of the existing documents will be reviewed and will form 
some basis for the Plan.   
 
Ms. Karalea Cox, Common Sense Facilitation, thanked the Council for meeting with her and 
allowing her to interview them.  She stated that she needs to interview Mayor Rankin.  She 
appreciated their time and thoughtfulness as they answered her questions.  She thanked Mr. 
Billingsley for considering her for the facilitation.   
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that Ms. Cox is very intelligent, and very 
experienced in this type of work.  He stated that he has worked with Ms. Cox several times 
before and has never been disappointed in her professionalism, candor and intelligence on 
these types of endeavors.  He hopes Council will echo those same comments at the end of the 
process.      

 
Proclamation designating July 2016 as Park and Recreation Month.  (Bryan Hughes) 
 
Mr. Billingsley read the proclamation into the record.  
 
Mayor Rankin proclaimed July 2016 as Park and Recreation Month and provided the 
proclamation to Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director.  He commended the Parks 
and Recreation Department for their hard work and dedication.   
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 
the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  
 
Authorization to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Pinal County, for Judd 
Road, located between Quail Run Lane and Attaway Road, for construction, improvement 
and maintenance of the roadway.  (Christopher Salas) 
 
Approval of the May 9 Special Meeting, May 9 Worksession and May 16, 2016 Council 
minutes. 
 
Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
 
April 14, and May 19, 2016 Arts and Culture Commission minutes 
April 27, 2016 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 4 of 15 

On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion on possible need for amendment of the Town of Florence Development Code 
with special emphasis on the Design Review Code. (Mayor Tom Rankin and 
Councilmember John Anderson) 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Town needs to be more business friendly.  He stated that 
sometimes being business friendly starts where the process begins and first impressions are 
important.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he previously sat on the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  Three years ago, while he was a Commissioner, the Code was modified to make 
it friendlier.  The changes are a result of a project that was going on at that time in which the 
Planning and Zoning Commission did not get the opportunity to review the project.  He stated 
that discussions took place regarding what was considered construction and vertical and what 
was in the Code.  The Code was changed and it took a lot of the responsibility from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and placed it with the Community Development Director.  He 
noted that it is not saying anything disparaging about the Community Development Director, as 
he does an excellent job.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that, as Town Council, they should be more involved in the 
overall planning and development of the community.  He stated that for the last two years, 
Council has been so involved with the budget and elections and have lost sight of what they 
should be doing for the Town.  He stated that it is his opinion that the Council should emphasize 
planning and development.  He would like to see projects presented to Council and the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and to be more involved, like in the past.  In the past, 
recommendations for projects in the Town were forwarded to Council at almost every Council 
meeting.  This not only educated the Council but kept the Council involved as well.  He would 
like the Council to revert to the previous version of the Code.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that there has been some controversy regarding the Circle K 
project with regards to how the building will be situated.  There are issues regarding the 
Community Facility Districts (CFDs) and there will not be a presentation regarding ownership of 
the land.  He stated that he believes they need to be reviewed by Council and understand the 
total impact before decisions are made.  He proposed to revert back to the Code that was in 
place three years ago with a few modifications to clarify some of the issues that they had at that 
time.       
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the item is for discussion only.  He stated that he reviewed 
Councilmember Anderson’s suggestions and stated that the civil engineering plans bypasses 
the Planning and Zoning Commission and Council.  He stated the Council, by law, is supposed 
to have three people; Town Clerk, Chief of Police, and Civil Engineer, as the only required 
positions.   Engineering has to remain with the engineer.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 5 of 15 

Councilmember Anderson stated that his concern is sometimes civil engineering is done and 
approved without Council’s knowledge.  He stated that the staff works for the Council and the 
Council should be involved in some way before a major project is approved by engineering.  
  
Mayor Rankin agreed that the current Code does not resolve the customer issues.   
 
Discussion occurred regarding it being cost prohibitive to bring the buildings along Main Street 
up to Code, unless the property owner wants to do historic preservation.  The problem is also 
the size of the buildings and the cost to purchase the building.   
 
Discussion occurred on having the Codes be flexible to accommodate various types of plans. 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that the façade program can be part of the rehabilitation of 
some of the buildings along Main Street. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission does not make decisions, but 
rather recommendations to the Town Council.     
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he received the information right before the meeting began 
and has not had a chance to review it.  He does not believe the Council is prepared to discuss 
this item as time was not allowed to prepare for it.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that there are options available to the Council: 
 

- Remain status quo 
- Have staff work on the changes 
- Hire a consultant to do the entire Town Code; however, this item was not budgeted for. 

 
Mayor Rankin asked that Council provide their opinion to Mr. Billingsly so that he can get a 
consensus as to when to bring the item back to Council for consideration.  
 
Councilmember Anderson suggested that Council have a Worksession with the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and staff.   
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if the revisions will be for Design Review Code or the entire 
Building Code.  She stated that she does not have the technical expertise and would need to 
rely on the professional staff who understands those matters.  She would like to know what the 
goal to be accomplished is.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he is referring to the entire Town Code.  They have piece milled the 
revisions to the Code in the past.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he and Mr. Eckhoff are professional in the Code and have the 
expertise in implementing the many components that go with planning, development and 
zoning.  He stated that there are so many factors that need to be considered as no two 
developments are the same.  He concurs with Mayor Rankin in that you cannot piece mill the 
revisions to the Code.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 6 of 15 

Mr. Billingsley pointed out three comments in the handout that he wanted to address, which 
included:   
 

1. “There was and still is an issue that civil engineering plans bypassing the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the Town Council.” 

 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Town Council are not 
registered engineers in the State of Arizona and do not have a legal right to review or approve 
engineering plans.  He noted that you have to be a registered civil engineer in the State of 
Arizona and you have to apply the standards of the State, the federal requirements to design 
roads, drainages, etc. This has nothing to do with plan design review or planning and zoning.  
The Planning and Zoning Commission should be the independent oversight on all major 
construction projects.  He stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission, under the Town 
Code, is an advisory role.  They do not approve anything and do not oversee major construction 
projects.  There are technical professionals, who are licensed and have an education and 
necessary background to oversee the projects.  He stated that there are many components to a 
project and many codes and requirements that they need to abide by.    
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Council needs to consider if they want to make this a priority because 
it is a very large project.  He highly advocates for looking at everything and its interface and to 
modernize the Town’s Code so that we can be competitive in the development environment.    
He stated that he started this process in motion in Maricopa years ago, and it was only recently 
adopted.  It cost Maricopa approximately $500,000 and took more than three years to complete.  
He stated Council can also consider focusing on individual issues.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that if Council makes this a priority, they will need to put other projects on 
the backburner and assign staff to make the review of these Codes and the interface a priority. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that if the Council wishes to move forward, they will need to decide if they 
would prefer to do the project internally or externally.  Normally, an external consultant is hired 
who specializes in this type of work.  He stated that the project is a multi-year process and 
typically done by a consultant.  He stated that the tentative budget does not include this project.  
He stated that he would need time to look at what the challenges will be and it would be 
beneficial if Council will let him know what the concerns are and if they can be resolved 
internally and does the Town need to re-invent themselves.    
 

2. “We need to go back to the old Code and the way that we used to do things.” 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that this comment is challenging for a professional because he always 
wants to move forward and be on the cutting edge.  People want to modernize and add 
efficiency.   
 

3.  We want to take the power out of the staff’s hand for approvals and that the decisions 
should be made by the Planning and Zoning Commission and Council at every level. 

 
Mr. Billingsley stated that this is the opposite of streamlining things.  It will slow down the 
development process if the Community Development Director and Public Works Director do not 
have the ability to approve items and staff needs to come before Council for every submittal 
that is made.     



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 7 of 15 

Mr. Billingsley stated that this is an important topic and staff needs to listen to the ideas of the 
Council and come up with a comprehensive solution.  Guidance has to be given to staff and the 
resources or the priority necessary to allow staff to move in that direction.    
   
Mr. Billingsley asked the Council how they would like to proceed. 
 
Councilmember Anderson responded that his proposal of reverting back to the old Code is not 
always the wrong thing to do.  He was not proposing the changing of the building codes, as it is 
a very complicated process.  His goal was to have Town Council be involved in the planning 
and development of the Town.  He stated the old Code was one page long and simple and it is 
now six pages long and more complicated.  The new Code was intended to reduce cycle time 
and make the Town more business friendly, which it hasn’t done.  He suggested going to 
something simpler because Florence is a small Town and needs to be able to respond quickly 
and do things in an efficient manner.  He would like to see it condensed to a half page long for 
the design review.  He stated that he is not referring to the technical aspects, civil engineering, 
or the building of bridges.  He wants Council to have the opportunity to see what is going on 
and the impact of those items, such as 28 foot streets in Johnson Ranch.  He reiterated that he 
is not trying to dictate to staff what they should or should not approve but Council should 
provide the guidelines and policies. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that deciding on the width of the street is done by engineering 
and it has to adhere to federal and state codes.  
 
Councilmember Woolridge stated this project is something that will need to be done eventually 
but she does not see it as a priority at this time.  She suggested that this project be put on the 
back burner and to deal with it at a later time.  She stated they may need to hire consultants 
and this was not budgeted for.  
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that Council can direct staff to notify them of all projects so 
Council can provide input and have discussions.   
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission meets with the developers and 
they come up with the plans for the development.  The Community Development Director also 
meets with the developers.  The Town must also consider the developers because they are 
trying to utilize as much of their property as they can for resale.  He would like this item brought 
back to Council in one month.   
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he agrees with Councilmember Woolridge.  He stated that 
Council needs to communicate with staff.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that discussion is important.  He explained how large the project can get 
and provided an example in which the discussion had started with design code and turned into 
street widths.  He stated the Council adopted the Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) 
standards for street widths.  He stated that Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) 
standards are used for highways.  He explained how the guidelines would be changed if the 
Town elected not to use MAG standards.  He stated it is vital that Council come to him or Ms. 
Garcia and provide their bulleted list of their concerns with regards to the Codes.  His advice, as 
a professional, is to hire an outside consultant to look at things comprehensively if there are 
several challenges, from the Council, across the various Codes and guidelines.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 8 of 15 

Mayor Rankin stated that the Council wants to make it as easy as possible to get new 
businesses into Town, especially into the Historical District. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the concept is difficult to understand because sustainability may 
sound simple but there are several definitions for it.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that there is no funding in the budget for this project.  She is not 
opposed to fixing some immediate needs or emergencies that need to be addressed.  
 
Mr. Billingsley asked Council if they can provide specific projects in which they felt things have 
gone wrong because there may have been reasons why things were held up that relate to the 
Town Codes.  This would help staff provide a better answer when they come back next month.  
He stated Johnson Ranch is not within the Town of Florence.   
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he referred to Johnson Ranch as one of the issues with 
street width.  When he was on the Planning and Zoning Commission he was told that the 
standard for Florence was a fifty foot wide street.  He does not know what the standard is. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that there is a fifty foot wide design width for the right-of-way for local 
streets, which is the property dedication.   
 
Discussion occurred on the various widths for the various types of streets.   
 
Resolution No. 1587-16:   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia read Resolution No. 1587-16 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING 
REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE PERSONNEL POLICY.  (Scott Barber) 

 
Mr. Scott Barber, Human Resources Director, stated that the current Personnel Policy was first 
adopted in April 2013 for July 1, 2014 implementation, and was last amended in October 2014.  
He stated that there are four provisions that will be amended: 
 
- Nepotism Policy 

• Use the same kind of language that is in common usage in relationship to law, policy 
regulation and procedure concerning less formal relationships that exist between 
individuals in the workplace. 

 
- Overtime Policy 

• Reflect a decision that was made by a previous Town Manager in 2014 regarding a grant 
program which has been implemented 

• To formalize language concerning use of flex time within a particular given work period.   
• Current Town Manager has asked for specific language to bring clarity.   

 
- Sick Leave 

• How the Town applies or uses available leave time for employees who are injured on the 
job.   



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 9 of 15 

• The proposed amendment alters the way the Town charges non-public safety employees 
for leave time when they miss work due to an on-the-job injury.  Currently, non-public 
safety employees are charged accrued sick and vacation time for absences when they 
are hurt at work.    

• These changes would not begin charging leave time until the 7th day of any covered 
absence and then will allow the employee to supplement compensation received under 
workers’ compensation insurance with available leave time.   

• State law requires the Town to maintain compensation for a public safety employee 
injured on the job for a period of six months and prohibits the Town from charging the 
injured employee any available accrued leave time. 

 
Mr. Barber stated that in the last three full calendar years, the Town has only had four public 
safety employees lose work time because of an injury, and only one of the four was significant.     

 
- Leave Pay   

• The policy specifically requires approval by the Town Manager for any leave without pay. 
• The proposed change simplifies how employees may be granted leave without pay by 

empowering the department head to grant leave without pay for up to five working days.   
• The situations that are encountered typically involve much shorter periods of time and 

should not require the Town Manager’s approval.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. 1587-16. 

  
Resolution No. 1589-16:  

 
Ms. Garcia read Resolution No. 1589-16 by title only.  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING 
THE TENTATIVE ESTIMATES OF THE AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR THE PUBLIC EXPENSE 
FOR THE TOWN OF FLORENCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017; ADOPTING A TENTATIVE 
ANNUAL BUDGET; SETTING FORTH THE  RECEIPTS, EXPENDITURES AND THE 
AMOUNT PROPOSED TO BE EXPENDED FOR VARIOUS PURPOSES; GIVING NOTICE OF 
THE TIME FOR PUBLIC HEARING FOR TAXPAYERS ON THE ADOPTION OF THE FINAL 
BUDGET; ADOPTING THE BUDGET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STATE-IMPOSED 
EXPENDITURE LIMITATION AND VOTER-APPROVED EXCESS AMOUNT; DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY.  (Gabe Garcia)  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that in order to meet the Town’s commitment under State law; the Town 
must approve a tentative budget before June 30th.  The tentative budget sets a cap on 
expenditures.  Any changes occurring to the tentative budget, if approved, until the final budget 
is adopted cannot exceed the dollar amount for expenditures, as shown in the tentative budget.  
He stated staff and Budget Committee members were confronted with some very difficult 
challenges.      
 
Mr. Billingsley provided a presentation, in which he outlined the following: 
− Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Overview 

• Challenges: 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 10 of 15 

 $1,200,000 of reserves budgeted to balance 2015/2016 Budget 
 The need for the May Special Election for expenditure limitation to enable Town to 

move forward due the the home rule election that failed in 2014 and to approve a 
budget for Fiscal Year 2016/2017. 

- Accomplishments: 
• Budget Target with three phases of implementation  
• Voters passed Special Election for next fiscal year to continue Town operations 
 

- Fiscal year 2015/2016 Fund Balance 
 

Projected Fund Balance FY 2015/2016 (Revised) $5,507,591 

Revenues  $14,150,647 

Expenditures $14,145,341 

Projected Ending Fund Balance FY 2016/2017 $5,512,897 

Projected Net Change to Fund Balance  $5,306 

 
• The Projected Fund Balance has been achieved without utilization of the approved “One 

Time Revenue” Tool.  
 
- Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Overview 

• Challenges: 
 Balance 2016/2017 Budget 
 Home Rule Election 

• Accomplishments: 
 Providing balanced Tentative Budget for approval that includes $67,064 revenues 

exceeding expenditures  
 Home Rule will take place in August 2016 
 

-  Updates Fiscal Year 2016/2017 
• The following changes have been added to the FY 2016/2017 budget following the last 

council meeting to include the following Council recommendations: 
 General Fund: 

o Added East Valley Partnership $2,500 
o Removed Pinal Governmental Alliance ($1,500) 
o Net change to General Fund $1,000 

 HURF: 
o Added up to $40,000 for intersection solution 
o Net change to HURF $40,000 

 Grants: 
o Included Façade Program and lighted crosswalk beacons to be in the 

miscellaneous grants portion of the budget (if funding becomes available) 
o Net Change to General Fund $0 
 

− Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Fund Balance 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 11 of 15 

Projected Fund Balance FY 2015/2016 
 (Revised) 

$5,512,897 

Revenues  $14,784,648 

Expenditures $14,717,584 

Projected Ending Fund Balance FY 2016/2017 $5,579,961 

Net Change to Fund Balance  $67,064 

• The Tentative Budget revenues are projected to exceed expenditures by $67,064 for the 
Fiscal Year 2016/2017  

 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, to adopt 
Resolution No. 1589-16. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilmember Anderson:  Yes 
Councilmember Guilin:  Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins:  Yes 
Councilmember Wall:  Yes 
Councilmember Woolridge: Yes 
Mayor Rankin:  Yes 
Motion Passed:  Yes: 6; No: 0 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval on adoption of Policy Guidelines and Application 
Procedures for change in ownership of land in Community Facilities Districts.  (Clifford 
Mattice) 
 
Mr. Clifford Mattice, Town Attorney, stated that the procedures are meant to complement the 
initial set of procedures that were adopted in 2007 in the formation of the facility districts for the 
Town.  There have been recent changes in ownership of large parcels in the area subject to the 
facility district benefits.  As part of those discussions, and in consultation with the Board’s Bond 
Counsel, they helped develop these set of procedures, in which there is some overlap.   
 
Mr. Mattice stated that the intent is when there is a major change in ownership of land and the 
new owner intends to seek the benefits of the District and to be added as a party to, or to 
amend for its purposes, development agreements or existing obligation, which affects the 
district and the property, the owner would need to follow the new policies, which are geared 
with some more specifics to help with the process.  This set of procedures adds some timelines 
on the process to help keep things moving along with pertinent information that is needed by 
the staff.  It includes such things as a feasibility report and other items that are required when 
an owner first comes into the District, but with an update what may be new infrastructure and 
new development plan changes.    
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if Mr. Cafiso has reviewed the procedures. 
 
Mr. Mattice stated that Mr. Cafiso developed the procedures.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 12 of 15 

Councilmember Anderson inquired if the current homeowners had any input in the new 
procedures.   
 
Mr. Mattice explained that the developer/new owner of property in the District is required to 
provide the form of notification that they will be giving to property owners who purchase 
property that will be subject to the assessments or the taxes.  This is an item that is dealt with 
up front.  Addition to the feasibility study, they will need to address the impact on the community 
including the owners of property that are existing within the District.   
 
Councilmember Anderson clarified that he is inquiring about the current residents and new 
owners. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the developer gets the CFD.  He inquired how a future homeowner 
would be involved with the development of the CFD. 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he is referencing the current owners in the CFD.  He 
stated it appears as though the developers have all of the involvement and little involvement by 
the people who are paying off the bond.   
 
Ms. Garcia explained that when the CFD was formed there was one property owner and the 
owner signed for every parcel.  She stated that was the initial notification.  There is a 
development agreement in place that allows for future owners of the property, when it is sold, to 
have the same rights that went into place with that the development agreement as it runs with 
the land.  She stated the owner gets a say when the CFD is formed.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that with this procedure, it means that parcels have traded hands from the 
original property owner and they have sold it and someone else is going to come in and 
develop it.  Each of the individual parcels have already signed off on being involved in the 
Community Facility District and the Development Agreement already exists on the land.  It is 
just the application process that it has to go through to ensure that they have the financial 
wherewithal to protect the Town of Florence and the CFDs by participating.  The Town is going 
through this process to ensure that the Town of Florence has done its due diligence in deciding 
who can be part of this process.     
   
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and carried to 
adopt Policy Guidelines and Application Procedures for change in ownership of land in 
Community Facilities Districts.   

 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT NO. 1. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to 
adjourn to Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1. 
 
Acknowledgment of Policy Guidelines and Application Procedures for change in 
ownership of land in Community Facilities Districts.  (Clifford Mattice) 

 
On motion of Boardmember Guilin, seconded by Boardmember Woolridge, and carried to 
acknowledge the Policy Guidelines and Application Procedures for change in ownership of land 
in Community Facilities Districts. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 13 of 15 

ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT NO. 1. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Guilin, and carried to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 1. 
 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT NO. 2. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
adjourn to Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 2.  
 
Acknowledgment of Policy Guidelines and Application Procedures for change in 
ownership of land in Community Facilities Districts.  (Clifford Mattice) 
 
On motion of Boardmember Guilin, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins, and carried to 
acknowledge the Policy Guidelines and Application Procedures for change in ownership of land 
in Community Facilities Districts. 
 
ADJOURN FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITY DISTRICT NO. 2. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Woolridge, seconded by Boardmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facility District No. 2. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that he has been having meetings with a local group about the need to 
discuss redevelopment, infill, historic properties, and how to preserve while at the same time 
providing redevelopment.  He was asked to put an educational field trip for the members of the 
Historic District Advisory Commission (HDAC).  The field trip is planned for tomorrow and will 
entail a trip to Tucson.  Those in attendance will include the HDAC Commissioners, one 
member of Council and and himself.  He stated they will go to Repp Mclain Design as well as 
site tours to three different properties that have been successful adaptive reuse projects in the 
City of Tucson.  They will also attend presentations by local Tucson architects and Mr. Jonathan 
Mabery, Tucson Historic Preservation Officer.      
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Megan Cetta, Recreation Programmer, had her first child, Jonathan, 
who was born on June 12th.  Both mom and baby are doing well and he congratulated the Cetta 
family.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that they have had a variety of meetings pertaining to teens.  The first 
event that the teens are sponsoring is a pool party on June 24, 2016 from 6:00 pm to 9:00 pm.  
The event is free of charge.   
 
Mr. Billingsley understands that approximately ten years ago, the Town had a Transportation 
Enhancement Project called the Main Street Lighting and Street Furniture Project, through 
ADOT.   The project design is completed and went out to bid.  He stated that they received 
seven bids on the project and the low bidder is under the budgeted amount.  He anticipates that 
the ADOT board will approve the project in the next month.  Construction should start in late 
summer or early fall.   
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 14 of 15 

Councilmember Anderson asked what the project was. 
 
Mr. Billingsly explained that it would entail street lighting, street furniture, trash containers, and 
bike racks.  The transportation program has not existed for four years and is a project that has 
been going for a long time.  Mr. Knudson has been managing the project. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that there has been much discussion regarding bond sales having to do 
with MRCFD No. 1 and MRCFD No. 2.  The Board has been in the process of closing on the 
following: 
- Special Assessment Bonds for MRCFD No. 1, which will sell $987,000 worth of bonds for 

Units 50 and 53 in Anthem in July 2016.  
- General Obligation (GO) Bonds for MRCFD No. 2, which have already gone to market  

• Bond underwriters provided a session on May 24, 2016 to discuss the potential of 
residents buying into the GO Bonds sales. 

• $2 million worth of value of bonds were sold on the open market  on June 2, 2016   
• Bond underwriters held the bonds at 5.29%    
• Prior to funds being released to Pulte, the Town will need to get project binders 

completed including signatures from engineers on both sides.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town will release a press release regarding the extreme heat.  He 
acknowledged the good work that the members of the community and the Police Department 
are doing.  The Town received donations of pallets of water from Theresa and Robert Van 
Cleave and other residents of Sun City Anthem for the Florence Police and Fire Departments to 
help those that could be suffering from heat exhaustion.  In addition, Sgt. Tatlock of the Florence 
Police Department received water, ice and other donations from local businesses.  Circle K 
Manager Sean Harrison, and Anthem Safeway Manager Barry Henson donated Styrofoam ice 
chests to distribute the water and ice. The Water Shed in Coolidge donated more than 90 
pounds of ice.  The water and ice are distributed by officers in the Florence Police Department 
to citizens who show any signs of ill effects from the extreme heat.  This effort will continue 
through June 22, 2016 or as long as the temperatures remain above the 110 degrees.  
 
Mayor Rankin asked that a letter of appreciation be sent to those who donated.  He expressed 
the Council’s appreciation for the donations and their generosity.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he is the Council Representative on the Arts and Culture 
Committee and the 150th Anniversary.  He thanked the public for attending those meetings and 
for their enthusiasm.  He stated appreciation needs to be shown to the many people who attend 
the various Town meetings.   
 
Mayor Rankin invited everyone to the Fourth of July celebration.  He reminded everyone to use 
sunscreen because of the heat. 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
June 20, 2016 
Page 15 of 15 

An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for the following reasons: 
 
For legal matters pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(3) and (A)(4) for the purpose of 
discussion and consultation with the Town’s attorneys for legal advice and to consider 
the Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to contracts and pending or 
contemplated litigation involving land use in the Town.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried to 
adjourn at 8:10 pm.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on June 20, 2016, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
13a. 

MEETING DATE:  July 18, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Parks and Recreation 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Bryan Hughes,  
                                      Parks and  Recreation Director             
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject: Koko Entertainment, LLC Teen Leadership and Programming   Meeting Date: July 18, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

SUBJECT:    Teen Leadership and Programming  Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve a contract with Koko Entertainment, LLC, for Teen Leadership and 
Programming in an amount not to exceed $48,000 and authorize the Town Manager to 
transfer ownership of a 1995 Ford Club Wagon Van scheduled for disposal to Mr. 
Hunter. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
There has been an absence of teen programming in our community, particularly from 
the Town in recent years.  Staff recognizes the importance for quality youth 
development programs in Florence and Mr. Billingsley has shared that desire to 
increase teen leadership opportunities and programming in the coming year.  
Accordingly, $50,000 was included in the Fiscal Year 2017 budget to implement teen 
programs. 
 
Staff is proposing to enter into a contract with Kim “Koko” Hunter (Koko Entertainment, 
LLC) for the planning, coordination, and implementation of teen programs and events.  
Mr. Hunter is a leader in Arizona developing and nurturing programs for teens.  He has 
developed similar programs in the City of Maricopa, City of Phoenix, Boys and Girls 
Clubs, and he is currently the Dean of Discipline at South Pointe High School in 
Phoenix, where he continues to mentor youth.  His ability to connect with teens is 
inspiring and the resources and connections he has related to youth development and 
at-risk youth will help create a foundation for a successful teen leadership program in 
the coming year.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Koko Entertainment, LLC, is seeking $50,000 for professional services, operating 
supplies and equipment associated with new Teen Leadership and Programming.  The 
programs and events are designed to increase teen activities and enhance leadership 
skills among teens in Florence. 



Subject: Koko Entertainment, LLC Teen Leadership and Programming   Meeting Date: July 18, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

In negotiating with Mr. Hunter, he mentioned he was seeking a used 15-passenger van 
for his company.  The Town currently has a van in the surplus inventory scheduled to be 
disposed of.  Mr. Hunter is interested in the van; a 1995 Ford Club Wagon Van with 
77,236 miles, valued at $2,131.  Staff is proposing entering into a contract with Koko 
Entertainment, LLC, for $48,000 and transferring the ownership of the 1995 Ford Van to 
Mr. Kim “Koko” Hunter for a total compensation package valued at approximately 
$50,131. 
 
$50,000 was included in the Fiscal Year 2017 Budget to implement this program.  The 
$48,000 contract and transfer of ownership of the van will allow for a savings of $2,000, 
which may or may not be used for another teen programming this fiscal year. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the contract with Koko Entertainment, LLC, (Kim “Koko” 
Hunter) for Teen Leadership and Programming and authorizing the Town Manager to 
transfer ownership of the 1995 Ford Club Wagon Van, scheduled for disposal, to Mr. 
Hunter. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Koko Entertainment LLC, Contract 
Kim “Koko” Hunter’s Resumé  
1995 Ford Club Wagon Van Information 













1 | P a g e  
 

 

Teen Leadership and Programming 

Classes, Programs and Special Events – FY 2016-2017 

Activity Activity Type Day(s) Date(s) Projected 
Attendance 

Florence Teen Council (FTC) Meetings Tuesday/ 
Thursday 

July-May 12-36 

FHS Lunchtime Jam Music/Dance Friday 
 

July-May 200 

Music, Song and Dance Class Music/Dance Tuesday 
 

July-May 12-36 

Teen Magazine Journalism/Graphic Design TBD 
 

July-May 12-36 

Teen Pool Party Performance/Music/Dance Friday 
 

July, August, May, 
June 

200 

Make a Difference Day Volunteer Saturday October 29th 40 
 

Phoenix Suns Game Excursion TBD 
 

November 12-24 

Jr. Parada Parade Performance/Volunteer Saturday 
 

November 26th  40 

Christmas on Main Performance/Volunteer Friday 
 

December 2nd  40 

Teen Conference Meeting TBD 
 

February 200 

Historic Home Tour Volunteer Saturday 
 

February 11th  40 

Spring Training Game Excursion TBD 
 

March 12-24 

Senior Prom Music/Dance Saturday 
 

April 200 

Arizona Diamondbacks Game Excursion TBD 
 

June 12-24 

  



2 | P a g e  
 

• Benefits and Impact to Community 
o Leadership Development for FTC Programs 

 Team development skills 
 Event planning and implementation 
 Leadership skills associated with self-esteem and confidence, which reduces risk of 

delinquent behaviors by positive influence 
 Mentoring and positive role modeling decreases latch-key child risks in community, 

which could lead to delinquent behavior 
 Assistance for the at-risk youth in Florence community 
 Peer Support 

 
• General Teen Activities provided by FTC  

o Provide events for health and wellbeing, including physical fitness and mental development 
skills 

o Meets gap in parks and recreation for positive teen programming 
 
• Observational Impact Results 

o Communication between students and teachers 
o Communication between students and program providers 
o Communication between students and parents 
o Overall improved conflict resolution and coping skills that are often a part of adolescent 

development 
o Provides positive influence for continuing education and decreasing the dropout rate as a 

primary prevention method 
o Increased parental support 
o Career development skills 

 



1416 E. Dunbar Dr. 
Phoenix AZ, 85042 
Phone 602-696-4549 
E-mail kokosway@yahoo.com 

Kim Hunter 

 

 

EXPERIENCE   Director/Coordinator 

(Modeling) 

1983-1986 – Fashion show coordinator 

1987-1995 – Fashion show Director. 

1994-1996 – International sports model for Adidas (made the cover in 1994) 

 

(Professional Sports) 

2000-2002 Phoenix Mercury Hip Hop Squad 

2000-2014 Phoenix Suns Entertainment Team 

2000-2008 Arizona Rattlers Entertainment Team (Ratt Pack) 

2002-2014 Phoenix Mercury Mascot (Scorch) 

2004 – Summer Olympics Basketball entertainment team – Athens, Greece 

 

E-Team (Entertainment Teams) 

Personal Experience: 

Phoenix Mercury Hip Hop Squad 

Phoenix Suns Zoo Crew 

2004 Summer Olympics – Athens, Greece 

NBAE Celebrity Shootout Phoenix 

NBAE Celebrity basketball championship – Los Angeles  

NBA 

 

 

Instructing Experience  

Los Angeles Clippers E-Team 

Seattle Super Sonics E-Team 

Orlando Magic E-Team 

Sacramento Kings  

Sacramento Monarch  

Indiana Fever 

Harlem Globetrotters E-Team 

Margaritaville Interaction Team 

Flipside by Bo Interaction Team 

 

Teen Related Experience 

Teen Conference 

 City of Maricopa 2009 to 2012 

 South Mountain Community College 2010 to present 

 Gateway Community College 2015 to present 

 BYRC - Teen Conference 1984 to 1996 

 City of Phoenix Teen Expo 1991 to 1997 

 City of Miami Teen Scene 1997 to 2001 

 City of Globe Red Ribbon Teen Event 1997 to 2001 

 MLK Youth Rally 1987 to present 

 Crash course Youth Conference 2013 to present 



 City of Phoenix City Streets Conference 1991 to 1996 

 City of Phoenix Teen Expo 1987 to 1997 

 ICAN Youth and Teen program Teen Expo 1997 to 2000 

 APRA Youth session 1991 to 1996 

 San Tan Youth Explosion 2005 

Youth Directed Events: 

 Special Needs Prom 1998 to present 

 Sr. Prom (prom designed for citizens 55 years and over) 2012 to present 

 Homeless picnic 1992 to 2003 

 Thanksgiving parade 2010 to present 

 Cancer Survivors Community Prom 2016 

 Special Needs Halloween Party 2015 

 Teen Talent Show 1991 to present 

 Pioneers Luncheon (appreciation event for residents of 50+ years) 2010 to present 

 City of Maricopa Founders day (Youth section) 5000+ in attendance 2009 to 2012  

 City of Maricopa 4th of July celebration (Youth section) 10,000+ in attendance 2009 

to 2012 

 City of Maricopa Youth Concert 2011-2012 

 

Youth Programs: 

 Photography club 

 Modeling club 

 Young Gents commission  

 College readiness 

 Drill/Step team 

 Vocal expression 

 Future Marketers 

 JR. mentor 

 Business readiness  

 Youth court  

 Young law enforcement Young engineers 

 Fresh entrepreneurs 

 Teen advocacy group 

 Youth council 

Charity Fundraisers: 

 MDA muscle walk 2008 to present 

 MDA summer camp 1985 to present 

 MDA executive lock-up 2007 to present 

 Cerebral Palsy Walk with Me 2012 to present 

 Leukemia Lymphoma Foundation 2009 to present 

 Red Ribbon Week 1997 to present 

 Relay for Life 1997 to present 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2

 
 
Allessandra C. Allen, MBA 
Finance Projects Analyst 
Town of Florence 
PO BOX 2670 
Florence, AZ 85132 
(P) 520-868-7506 
(F) 520-868-7501 
 







 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
13b. 

MEETING DATE: July 18, 2016 
 
DEPARTMENT: Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                     Community Development Director 

 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
Subject: RCA for Town Directional Signage                                                    Meeting Date: July 18, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 
 

SUBJECT: Town Directional Signage  Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve a Town directional sign proposed to be located at the northwest 
corner of State Highway 79 and the Main Street extension with external illumination for 
an amount not to exceed $16,000. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Over the past few years, the Town and private parties have made substantial 
improvements within the core of Florence, most notably within the Town’s Historic 
District and within the Territory Square area.  Municipal investment in infrastructure and 
facilities, namely the new Library and Community Center, Aquatic Center, Silver King 
Hotel renovation, Padilla Park and the Main Street extension, just to name a few 
projects, have reinforced the Town’s commitment to the heart of the community and 
helped encourage more visitors and economic development opportunities.  Private 
investment in the core of Florence is increasing too.  Staff is cautiously optimistic that 
there is a favorable trend developing that will bring more businesses and even new 
housing, to the core of Florence over the coming years.  
 
With the success of the Main Street extension and building upon the momentum 
developing in the downtown area, staff believes there is an excellent opportunity to 
direct more traffic into the downtown area with the help of some new municipal (non-
commercial) directional signage.  The first phase of this plan is this current proposal to 
install a directional sign for the Historic Business District at the northwest corner of State 
Highway 79 and the Main Street extension.  As funding allows, a new CIP project may 
be established in the future for Town Gateway signs as visitors enter into the corporate 
limits of Florence. 
 
Staff hired a professional land surveyor to create a legal description for the sign 
easement.  The easement has also been marked for the convenience of the sign 
installation.  The landowner (Yole, LLC/Londen family) graciously granted an easement 



Subject: RCA for Town Directional Signage                                                      Meeting Date: July 18, 2016 
Page 2 of 2           

 
 

 

to the Town for this purpose, and the Town Council approved of this easement at their 
June 6, 2016 meeting.  
 
Also at the June 6, 2016 Council meeting, the Town Council recommended the use of 
the color Town logo on the subject sign.  There was additional discussion on the sign 
and a few changes to be made.  Staff took Council’s direction on the design changes, 
worked with the sign company on the changes and is now bringing back the final sign 
design for Council’s approval.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The projected cost of the subject sign with solar LED lighting is $15,374.86. 

 
The funds for this directional signage would come from the Economic Development 
Capitol Project Fund within the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to approve a Town directional sign proposed to be located at the northwest 
corner of State Highway 79 and the Main Street extension, with external illumination, for 
an amount not to exceed $16,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Sign Rendering 
 
 

 






	July 18, 2016 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8

	6. MRCFD1 
	6b. Ordinance No. MRCFD1 113-16 Tax Levy

	8. MRCFD2
	8b. Ordinance No. MRCFD2 213-16 Tax Levy

	10. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION
	10a. Ordinance No. 651-16 Property Tax Levy
	10c. Streetscape Project Presentation

	11. CONSENT
	11a. Resolution No. 1592-16 GRIC Tribal Gaming Funds
	11b. Resolution No. 1593-16  HIDTA
	11c. June 6, 2016 Council Minutes
	11c. June 20, 2016 Council Minutes

	11d i. December 2, 2015 150 Year Celebration Minutes
	11d i. January 6, 2016 150 Year Celebration Minutes
	11d i. January 28, 2016 150 Year Celebration Minutes
	11d i. February 24, 2016 150 Year Celebration Minutes
	11d i. March 23, 2016 150 Year Celebration Minutes
	11d i. April 27, 2016 150 Year Celebration Minutes

	11d ii. May 25, 2016 HDAC Minutes
	11d iii. April 20, 2016 Library Minutes
	11d iv. May 5, 2016 Planning and Zoning Minutes

	13. NEW BUSINESS
	13a. Koko Entertainment, LLC Teen Leadership and Programming Contract
	13b. Historic Business District Directional Sign




